C ommit tee Ag en da

AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE SOUTH
Wednesday, 26th February, 2020
You are invited to attend the next meeting of Area Planning Sub-Committee South, which
will be held at:

Council Chamber, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping
on Wednesday, 26th February, 2020
at 7.30 pm .
Georgina Blakemore
Chief Executive
Democratic Services
Officer

Democratic Services Tel: (01992) 564243
Email: democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Members:
Councillors G Mohindra (Chairman), A Patel (Vice-Chairman), R Baldwin, A Beales,
R Brookes, S Heap, R Jennings, J Jennings, H Kauffman, J Knapman, A Lion, L Mead,
S Murray, S Neville, M Owen, C P Pond, C C Pond, S Rackham, C Roberts, D Roberts,
B Sandler, J Share-Bernia, D Sunger and D Wixley

WEBCASTING/FILMING NOTICE
Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the
Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or
part of the meeting is being filmed. The meeting may also be otherwise filmed by
third parties with the Chairman’s permission.
You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection
Act. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the
Council’s published policy.
Therefore by entering the Chamber and using the public seating area, you are
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound
recordings for web casting and/or training purposes. If members of the public do not
wish to have their image captured they should speak to the webcasting officer or
otherwise indicate to the Chairman before the start of the meeting.
If you have any queries regarding this,
Communications Manager on 01992 564039.

1

please

contact

the

Corporate

Area Planning Sub-Committee South

1.

Wednesday, 26 February 2020

WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION
1.

This meeting is to be webcast;

2.
Members are reminded of the need to activate their microphones before
speaking; and
3.

the Chairman will read the following announcement:

“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be broadcast live to the
internet (or filmed) and will be capable of repeated viewing (or another use by such
third parties).
If you are seated in the public seating area it is likely that the recording cameras will
capture your image and this will result in the possibility that your image will become
part of the broadcast.
This may infringe your human and data protection rights and if you wish to avoid this
you should speak the webcasting officer.”
2.

ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS ATTENDING THE COUNCIL PLANNING
SUB-COMMITTEES (Pages 5 - 8)
General advice to people attending the meeting is attached.

3.

MINUTES (Pages 9 - 14)
To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of the Sub-Committee held on 29 January
2020.

4.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

5.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To declare interests in any item on this agenda.

6.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS
Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, requires that the permission of
the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive, before urgent
business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda of which the
statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted.

7.

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT LOCAL PLAN SUBMISSION VERSION - PLANNING
POLICY BRIEFING NOTE
A Planning Policy Briefing Note (March 2018) has been produced by the Planning
Policy Team to ensure that a consistent approach is taken to the provision of planning
policy advice for the District, particularly in relation to the Epping Forest District Local
Plan Submission Version, which was published on 18 December 2017.
The primary purpose of the Planning Policy Briefing Note is to inform the development
management process and to provide assistance for Development Management
Officers, Councillors, applicants and planning agents. The Planning Policy Briefing
2

Area Planning Sub-Committee South

Wednesday, 26 February 2020

Note is available at:
http://www.efdclocalplan.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/03/Planning-Policy-BriefingNote_Mar-2018.pdf
8.

SITE VISITS
To identify and agree requirements for formal site visits to be held with regard to any
planning application listed in this agenda, prior to consideration of the application.

9.

PLANNING APPLICATION - EPF/1680/19 - 30 YORK HILL, LOUGTON (Pages 15 22)
To consider the attached report.

10.

PLANNING APPLICATION EPF/2126/19 - 202 HIGH ROAD, LOUGTON (Pages 23 34)
To consider the attached report.

11.

PLANNING APPLICATION EPF/2411/19 - 65 STAPLES ROAD, LOUGTON (Pages
35 - 40)
To consider the attached report.

12.

PLANNING APPLICATION - EPF/3016/19 - 140-142 CHURCH HILL, LOUGHTON
(Pages 41 - 48)
To consider the attached report.

13.

PLANNING APPLICATION - EPF/3061/19 - 1 FONTAYNE AVENUE, CHIGWELL
(Pages 49 - 56)
To consider the attached report.

14.

PROBITY IN PLANNING - APPEAL DECISIONS, 1ST APRIL 2019 TO 30ST
SEPTEMBER 2019 (Pages 57 - 84)
To consider the attached report.

15.

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS
Exclusion: To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government
Act 1972, the public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of
business set out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the
Act (as amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2):
Agenda Item No

Subject

Nil

Nil

Exempt
Information
Paragraph Number
Nil

The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the
3

Area Planning Sub-Committee South

Wednesday, 26 February 2020

exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24
hours prior to the meeting.
Background Papers: Article 17 - Access to Information, Procedure Rules of the
Constitution define background papers as being documents relating to the subject
matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion:
(a)

disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the
report is based; and

(b)

have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not
include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential
information and in respect of executive reports, the advice of any political
advisor.

The Council will make available for public inspection for four years after the date of the
meeting one copy of each of the documents on the list of background papers.

4

Agenda Item 2
Advice to Public and Speakers at the Council’s District Development Management
Committee and Area Plans Sub-Committees
Are the meetings open to the public?
Yes all our meetings are open for you to attend. Only in special circumstances are the public
excluded.
When and where is the meeting?
Details of the location, date and time of the meeting are shown at the top of the front page of
the agenda along with the details of the contact officer and Members of the Committee.
Can I speak?
If you wish to speak you must register with Democratic Services by 4.00 p.m. on the
day before the meeting, by telephoning the number shown on the front page of the agenda.
Speaking to a Planning Officer will not register you to speak; you must register with
Democratic Service. Speakers are not permitted on Planning Enforcement or legal issues.
Who can speak?
Three classes of speakers are generally allowed: One objector (maybe on behalf of a
group), the local Parish or Town Council and the applicant or his/her agent. In some cases, a
representative of another authority consulted on the application may also be allowed to
speak.
What can I say?
You will be allowed to have your say about the application but you must bear in mind that
you are limited to three minutes. At the discretion of the Chairman, speakers may clarify
matters relating to their presentation and answer questions from Committee members.
If you are not present by the time your item is considered, the Committee will determine the
application in your absence.
If you have registered to speak on a planning application to be considered by the District
Development Management Committee, Area Plans Sub-Committee East, Area Plans SubCommittee West or Area Plans Sub-Committee South you will address the Committee from
within the Council Chamber at the Civic Offices. If you simply wish to attend a meeting of
any of these Committees to observe the proceedings, you will be seated in the public gallery
of the Council Chamber.
Can I give the Councillors more information about my application or my objection?
Yes you can but it must not be presented at the meeting. If you wish to send further
information to Councillors, their contact details can be obtained from Democratic Services or
our website www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk. Any information sent to Councillors should be
copied to the Planning Officer dealing with the application.
How are the applications considered?
The Committee will consider applications in the agenda order. On each case they will listen
to an outline of the application by the Planning Officer. They will then hear any speakers’
presentations.

Page 5

Revised ST (August 2017)

The order of speaking will be (1) Objector, (2) Parish/Town Council, then (3) Applicant or
his/her agent. The Committee will then debate the application and vote on either the
recommendations of officers in the agenda or a proposal made by the Committee. Should
the Committee propose to follow a course of action different to officer recommendation, it is
required to give its reasons for doing so.
An Area Plans Sub-Committee is required to refer applications to the District Development
Management Committee where:
(a)

the Sub-Committee’s proposed decision is a substantial departure from:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)

the Council's approved policy framework; or
the development or other approved plan for the area; or
it would be required to be referred to the Secretary of State for approval as
required by current government circular or directive;

(b)

the refusal of consent may involve the payment of compensation; or

(c)

the District Development Management Committee have previously considered the
application or type of development and has so requested; or

(d)

the Sub-Committee wish, for any reason, to refer the application to the District
Development Management Committee for decision by resolution.

Further Information
Further information can be obtained from Democratic Services or through our leaflet ‘Your
Choice, Your Voice’.

Page 6

Revised ST (August 2017)

Area Planning Subcommittee South 2019-20
Members of the Committee and Wards Represented:

Chairman
Cllr
Mohindra
Grange Hill

ViceChairman
Cllr Patel
Buckhurst Hill
West

Cllr
Baldwin
Loughton
Forest

Cllr Beales
Loughton
Forest

Cllr
Brookes
Loughton
Roding

Cllr Heap
Buckhurst Hill
East

Cllr B
Jennings
Loughton St
John’s

Cllr J
Jennings
Loughton St
Mary’s

Cllr
Kauffman
Loughton St
Mary’s

Cllr
Knapman
Chigwell
Village

Cllr Lion
Grange Hill

Cllr Mead
Loughton
Fairmead

Cllr Murray
Loughton
Roding

Cllr Neville
Buckhurst
Hill East

Cllr Owen
Loughton
Broadway

Cllr C C
Pond
Loughton
Broadway

Cllr C P
Pond
Loughton St
John’s

Cllr
Rackham
Grange Hill

Cllr C
Roberts
Loughton
Alderton

Cllr D
Roberts
Loughton
Alderton

Cllr Sandler
Chigwell Row

Cllr ShareBernia
Buckhurst Hill
West

Page 7

Cllr Sunger
Chigwell
Village

Cllr Wixley
Loughton
Fairmead

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3
EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL
COMMITTEE MINUTES
Committee:

Area Planning
South

Sub-Committee

Date:

29 January 2020

Place:

Council Chamber, Civic Offices,
High Street, Epping

Time:

7.30 - 9.15 pm

Members
Present:

A Patel (Vice-Chairman, in the Chair), R Baldwin, R Brookes, R Jennings,
J Jennings, H Kauffman, J Knapman, A Lion, L Mead, S Neville, M Owen,
C P Pond, C C Pond, S Rackham, C Roberts, D Roberts, D Sunger and
D Wixley

Other
Councillors:
Apologies:

G Mohindra, A Beales, S Heap, S Murray, B Sandler and J Share-Bernia

Officers
Present:

A Marx (Service Manager Planning (Development Management)), M Johnson
(Development Management Manager), F Caillat (Conservation Officer),
A Hendry (Senior Democratic Services Officer) and P Seager (Chairman's
Officer)

64.

WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION
The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be
broadcast on the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the
webcasting of its meetings.

65.

MINUTES
RESOLVED:
That the minutes of the meeting held on 20 November 2019 be taken as read
and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

66.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
(a)
Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor J Knapman
declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following agenda items by virtue of having
emails from the applicant about the process for the meeting. The Councillor had
determined that he would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the
applications and voting thereon:


EPF/2501/19 & EPF2502/19 – Grange Court 72 High Road, Chigwell.

(b)
Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor D Sunger
declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following agenda items by virtue of having
chaired the Chigwell Parish Council Planning Committee for the following items. The

Page 9

1

Area Planning Sub-Committee South

29 January 2020

Councillor had determined that he would remain in the meeting for the consideration
of the applications and voting thereon:

67.

EPF/2501/19 & EPF2502/19 – Grange Court 72 High Road, Chigwell.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS
It was noted that there was no other urgent business for consideration by the SubCommittee.

68.

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT LOCAL PLAN SUBMISSION VERSION - PLANNING
POLICY BRIEFING NOTE
It was noted that the Epping Forest District Local Plan Submission Version Planning
Policy Briefing note was available at:
http://www.efdclocalplan.org/wpcontent/uploads/2018/03/Planning-Policy-BriefingNote_Mar-2018.pdf

69.

SITE VISITS
There were no formal site visits requested by the Sub-Committee.

70.

PLANNING APPLICATION - EPF/2501/19 GRANGE COURT 72 HIGH ROAD,
CHIGWELL
APPLICATION No:

EPF/2501/19

SITE ADDRESS:

Grange Court
72 High Road
Chigwell
IG7 6PT

PARISH:

Chigwell

WARD:

Chigwell Village

DESCRIPTION OF
PROPOSAL:

Variation of condition 2 `Plan numbers' of
EPF/3275/17 (Grade II* listed building consent for
conversion, extension and partial demolition of existing
building to provide 14 flats with associated parking and
landscaping. Change of use from residential school
building (Use Class C2) to residential (Use Class C3))
- alterations to layout within listed building, and to
layout and elevations in the extensions

DECISION:

Refused

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=629481

REFUSED
1

The proposed alterations to the Grade II* Listed Building would result

Page 10

2

Area Planning Sub-Committee South

29 January 2020

in significant and substantial harm to the form and character, historic
layout and fabric, and legibility of the listed building, introducing
modern built elements not characteristic to a building of the age and
style, substantially altering the internal and external built form, and
removing and subdividing parts of the building which are of significant
importance to the fabric, appearance and legibility of its form. Such
works would thereby be contrary to policies HC10, HC12, DBE2 and
DBE9 of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations, policies DM7, DM8,
DM9 and DM10 of the Local Plan Submission Version (2017), and
the NPPF, particularly paragraphs 184, 193 and 196.
2

The alterations to the extension in terms of the treatment of the
glazed link to the Listed Building and the north east elevation in
particular, together with other alterations, would result in a lessening
of the visual and spatial separation from the listed building, and in an
increase in the appearance of mass and bulk resulting in an
inappropriate dominance of the listed building, detrimental to the
character of the site, to general amenity and to the wider
Conservation Area, contrary to policies HC6, HC7, HC10, HC12,
DBE1, DBE2 and DBE9 of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations,
policies DM7, DM9 and DM10 of the Local Plan Submission Version
(2017), and the NPPF.

Way forward:
The applicant to work with officers to secure the integrity, fabric and
character of this Grade 11* Listed Building and enable proper
implementation of the extant planning permission and listed building
consent in the interests of the future sustainability of this national
heritage asset.
71.

PLANNING APPLICATION EPF/2502/19 - GRANGE COURT 72 HIGH ROAD,
CHIGWELL

APPLICATION No:

EPF/2502/19

SITE ADDRESS:

Grange Court
72 High Road
Chigwell
IG7 6PT

PARISH:

Chigwell

WARD:

Chigwell Village

DESCRIPTION
PROPOSAL:

OF Variation of condition 2 `Plan numbers' of
EPF/3264/17 (Conversion, extension and partial
demolition of existing building to provide 14 flats with
associated parking and landscaping. Change of use
from residential school building (Use Class C2) to
residential (Use Class C3) - - alterations to layout
within listed building, and to layout and elevations in

Page 11

3

Area Planning Sub-Committee South

29 January 2020

the extensions.
DECISION:

Refuse Permission

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEAR
CH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=629482

REFUSED
1

The proposed alterations to the Grade II* Listed Building would result in
significant and substantial harm to the form and character, historic layout
and fabric, and legibility of the listed building, introducing modern built
elements not characteristic to a building of the age and style,
substantially altering the internal and external built form, and removing
and subdividing parts of the building which are of significant importance
to the fabric, appearance and legibility of its form. Such works would
thereby be contrary to policies HC10, HC12, DBE2 and DBE9 of the
adopted Local Plan and Alterations, policies DM7, DM8, DM9 and DM10
of the Local Plan Submission Version (2017), and the NPPF, particularly
paragraphs 184, 193 and 196.

2

The alterations to the extension in terms of the treatment of the glazed
link to the Listed Building and the north east elevation in particular,
together with other alterations, would result in a lessening of the visual
and spatial separation from the listed building, and in an increase in the
appearance of mass and bulk resulting in an inappropriate dominance of
the listed building, detrimental to the character of the site, to general
amenity and to the wider Conservation Area, contrary to policies HC6,
HC7, HC10, HC12, DBE1, DBE2 and DBE9 of the adopted Local Plan
and Alterations, policies DM7, DM9 and DM10 of the Local Plan
Submission Version (2017), and the NPPF.
Way forward:
The applicant to work with officers to secure the integrity, fabric and
character of this Grade 11* Listed Building and enable proper
implementation of the extant planning permission and listed building
consent in the interests of the future sustainability of this national heritage
asset.

72.

PLANNING APPLICATION - EPF/2764/19 11 KEY WEST COURT BLOCK B, 120
HIGH ROAD, CHIGWELL

APPLICATION No:

EPF/2764/19

SITE ADDRESS:

11 Key West Court Block B
120 High Road
Chigwell
Essex
IG7 5AR

Page 12

4

Area Planning Sub-Committee South

29 January 2020

PARISH:

Chigwell

WARD:

Chigwell Village

DESCRIPTION
PROPOSAL:

OF Proposed erection of an open sided car port over car
parking spaces.

DECISION:

Refused

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEAR
CH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=630498

REFUSED

1

The proposal, by reason of its height, design and proximity to flats 11
and 12 of Key West Court, Block B, results in an overbearing
relationship and is detrimental to the visual amenities of occupiers of
those flats. The development is therefore contrary to policies DBE1
and DBE2 of the Adopted Local Plan, policy DM9 of the Local Plan
Submission Version 2017 and the NPPF 2019.

Way forward:
Remove the structure

CHAIRMAN

Page 13

5

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14

Agenda Item 9

Epping Forest District Council
W
AY

EFDC

42

12
40

YORK
HILL

24

20

5

1

2
a
38

38

36

5
9

30

Ashley Grove
27

EFDC
93

105
Unauthorised reproduction infringes
Crown Copyright and may lead to
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Application Number:

EPF/1680/19

Site Name:

30 York Hill Loughton Essex IG10 1HT

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. ©
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No:
100018534

Scale of Plot:

1:500

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Page 15

45.4m

APPLICATION No:

EPF/1680/19

SITE ADDRESS:

30 York Hill
Loughton
Essex
IG10 1HT

PARISH:

Loughton

WARD:

Loughton St Johns

APPLICANT:

Mr Guvenc Topcuoglu

DESCRIPTION OF
PROPOSAL:
RECOMMENDED
DECISION:

Proposed two storey side and rear extension.
Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=625996

CONDITIONS
1

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the
expiration of three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2

The development hereby permitted will be completed and retained strictly in
accordance with the approved drawings numbers: 1906_LG_LS1 01, 02,
1904_LG_EE3 01, EE2 01, E01 01, PE1 O1 and PE2 01 &
1906_LG_G01_P01 Rev 02, P02 Rev 02, S01 REV 02, E02 REV 02 AND
E03 REV 02

3

Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development
shall match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing
by the Local Planning Authority.

4

The window openings in the south western flank elevation(s) shall be
entirely fitted with obscured glass with a minimum Level 3 obscurity and
have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in
which the window is installed and shall be permanently retained in that
condition.

This application is before this Committee since it is for a type of development that cannot
be determined by Officers if more than five objections are received (or in cases where less
than 5 were consulted, a majority of those consulted object) on grounds material to the
planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part 3: Scheme of
Delegation to Officers from Full Council).

Page 16

Description of Site:
Semi-detached dwelling on narrow site, opposite triangular green just north west of the
junction of Queens Road and York Hill, Loughton. The site falls within York Hill
Conservation Area and forms part of a frontage of mostly Victorian dwellings. There is a
narrow rear access lane serving the application site and neighbouring properties including
a terrace of properties in Forest Way to the rear.
Description of Proposal:
Proposed two storey side extension measuring 1.2m wide, 3.7m deep, 7.6m high (max)
reducing to 7.2m (due to the land rising to the rear of the site) and eaves height 4.3. The
extension would provide an extended kitchen/dining room and at first floor level provides
an extended bedroom with en-suite. The proposed materials are yellow stock brick to
match existing, plain clay roof tiles to match existing, and timber framed windows painted
white and white oak frame doors to the rear of the site.
Relevant History:
EPF/0623/14:- Two storey rear extension. Granted Permission 16.05.2014
The above application was approved by Planning Committee South on the 14th May 2014.
Planning Policy:
Development Plan Context
Local Plan (1998) and Alterations (2006)
Section 38(6) Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that planning
applications should be determined in accordance with the development plan unless
material considerations indicate otherwise. The Development Plan currently comprises
the Epping Forest District Council Adopted Local Plan (1998) and Alterations (2006).
The following policies within the current Development Plan are considered to be of
relevance to this application:
CP2 Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment
DBE9 Loss of Amenity
DBE10 Residential Extensions
HC6 & HC7 Development within Conservation Areas
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (February 2019)
The revised NPPF is a material consideration in determining planning applications. As with
its predecessor, the presumption in favour of sustainable development remains at the
heart of the NPPF. Paragraph 11 of the NPPF provides that for determining planning
applications this means either;
a) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan
without delay; or
b) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are
most important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting permission
unless:
i.
the application of policies in the NPPF that protect areas or assets of
particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development

Page 17

ii.

proposed; or
any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF
taken as a whole

The presumption in favour of sustainable development does not change the statutory
status of the development plan as the starting point for decision making, but policies within
the development plan need to be considered and applied in terms of their degree of
consistency with the Framework.
Epping Forest District Local Plan Submission Version (LPSV) (2017)
Although the LPSV does not currently form part of the statutory development plan for the
district, on 14th December 2017 the Council resolved that the LPSV be endorsed as a
material consideration to be used in the determination of planning applications.
Paragraph 48 of the NPPF provides that decision-takers may give weight to relevant
policies in emerging plans according to:




The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the preparation,
the greater the weight that may be given);
The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given);
and
The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the
policies in the NPPF (the closer the policies in the emerging plan to the policies in
the NPPF, the greater the weight that may be given).

The LPSV has been submitted for Independent Examination and hearing sessions were
held on various dates from February 2019 to June 2019. On the 2nd August, the appointed
inspector provided her interim advice to the Council covering the substantive matters
raised at the hearing and the necessary actions required of the Council to enable her to
address issues of soundness with the plan without prejudice to her final conclusions.
The following policies in the LPSV are considered to be of relevance to the determination
of this application, with the weight afforded by your officers in this particular case indicated:
Policy
SP1 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
DM7 Heritage Assets
DM8 Heritage at Risk
DM9 High Quality Design
DM10 Housing Design and Quality

Weight afforded
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant

Summary of Representations:
Number of neighbours consulted: 7
Site notice posted: Yes
Amended plans were received and a reconsultation took place. The majority of the below
responses were to the original submission.
LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL – Objection – on the grounds that it is overbearing due to
bulk, mass and height and was out of keeping with the street scene and conservation
area. The first floor terrace would cause overlooking and be detrimental to the amenity and

Page 18

privacy of the neighbours. A member of the Committee would not be willing to attend an
Area Planning Sub-Committee South meeting, having nothing further to add.
Neighbours Responses:
THE HILLS AMENITY SOCIETY: - objection – the only alterations were to remove the
balcony to the rear; there are no measurements on the proposed plans, and next door
no.32 is not mentioned on these proposed plans hence it is difficult to gauge what impact
they would have. The properties are original Edwardian cottages this proposal is
completely out of keeping with the attached property. Large rear window will affect the
privacy of neighbours living in Ashley /Grove and Forest Way.
2 FOREST WAY: - Objects to the planning application, the gardens at Forest Way are very
small. If this is approved then I would lose privacy as the development would overlook my
property.
4 FOREST WAY: - Objects to the proposal on the following two grounds: Loss of privacy –
across the whole house and garden, especially the kitchen and bedrooms and Massing –
making the area feel very crowded and built upon, particularly due to the roof extension
becoming overbearing from our position and making us feel hemmed in.
32 YORK HILL: - Objects the images clearly demonstrate how doctored the presentation
of the computer render on page 7 of the Design Access Statement which accompanied
the planning application for the proposed two storey rear side extension and roof terrace
at 30 York Hill.
9 ASHLEY GROVE: - objects to the proposal, the size of the rear extension would be
intrusive and block my outlook; cause loss of light from my property; design and scale of
the proposal appears to be out of character with its surroundings and the Conservation
Area. Concerned that the foundations of the proposed new building would affect the
boundary wall between our two properties. The previous planning application, which has
now lapsed, was for a side extension, not a rear extension. This current proposal, which
includes a rear extension, would be prominent in the back garden of No. 30 and alter the
design of this one of a pair of houses.
LOUGHTON RESIDENTS ASSOCIATION PLANS GROUP: - We object to this
application, which appears to be an over-development out-of-keeping with this
Conservation Area, and with neighbouring properties. We are also concerned about the
adverse effects on the privacy of residents of neighbouring properties which would be
created by the first floor.
However, if the District Council is minded to approve the application, we ask for conditions
as follows:
 to provide suitable landscaping
 to restrict demolition and building work hours to the Council’s usual standard hours
 to require wheel-washing equipment on-site
 to restrict vehicles to those of a size suitable for the roads leading to the site.
Application History:
A scheme for a two storey side extension was granted permission with conditions at
Planning Considerations:
Since the original submission the proposed plans have been amended following advice
from officers. The alterations are as follows:-

Page 19





The 0.7m deep ground floor single storey rear extension and the green roof have
been removed.
The proposed roof height of the proposed extension has been reduced by 0.9m.
The floor to ceiling window openings to the side elevation at ground floor and first
floors have been removed and revised to similar window openings to the existing.

The amended proposal remains the same as that previously approved under EPF/0623/14
in regards to the two storey side extension, there are however some alterations to the
fenestration to the rear wall and flank wall.
Character and Appearance
The key considerations in this case relate to design and appearance, impact upon the
conservation area, and on neighbouring amenity.
The roof of the extension would adopt the same roof pitch and height as the ridge of the
original rear projection and the proposed materials are to be in keeping with the existing
dwelling. In terms of design and scale the proposed extension is considered to be
sympathetic to the character and appearance of the property.
The extension would extend from the rear of the property and finish flush with the original
two storey rear projection to the north eastern side of the property, due to this positioning
the proposed extension to the rear of the property would have limited public views from the
street and therefore would not impact the character and appearance of the street scene.
Since the proposal is not almost identical to that previously approved under EPF/0623/14,
which was deemed to be appropriate, it is still considered that this extension is acceptable
within the conservation area.
Impact on neighbouring amenity.
The proposed extension would be sited on the common boundary with No.9 Ashley Grove.
The extension would have little impact on that property since there are no windows in the
flank wall of No.9 directly opposite to the proposed addition. The proposal does not extend
beyond the rear wall of No.9 and therefore does not restrict light or views from its rear
facing windows. A new window in the flank wall of No.30 should not create any overlooking
although it might be precautionary if this were obscure glazed.
The proposal would have no impact to the attached neighbour at no. 32 as the proposed
extension would not extend beyond the existing rear projection that is along the boundary
with nio.32.
The proposal would be located 10m from the rear wall of no 2 Forest Way, there would be
no impact in terms of overlooking as there are no additional windows proposed to the rear
elevation at first floor level, and even if this was the case these windows would be no
different to the existing rear windows at the property are surrounding neighbouring
properties at nos. 9 Ashley Grove and 32 York Hill.
Consent was previously granted for an almost identical extension to this in 2014, however
has now expired. Nonetheless the previous extension was assessed with regards to the
impact on neighbouring amenities and deemed to be acceptable. There is no change in
circumstance that alters this decision.
Objections Addressed

Page 20

Although this is a small site any loss of rear amenity space due to the extension will be
minimal and this proposal does not amount to overdevelopment. The only practical
drawback to the proposal will be lack of access during construction. Although there is a
very narrow rear access lane, and it will be important to neighbours that this is not blocked
at any time, unfortunately this is not considered to be a material planning consideration
since it would relate to a legal matter with regards to rights and access and easement.
Conclusion:
The proposal is a small, well designed addition that respects the character and
appearance of the house and the quality of the surrounding Conservation Area and would
not detrimentally impact on the amenities of neighbours. Due to the amended plans the
proposal is almost identical to the planning permission that was granted consent in 2014
under EPF/0623/14. As such the proposal complies with relevant planning policy and
consequently is recommended for approval.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:
Planning Application Case Officer: Natalie Price
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564718
or if no direct contact can be made please email:
contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10

Epping Forest District Council

RO
HI
GH

11

21
2

21
4

21
62
18

16

22
0

EFDC
RO
AD

El Sub Sta

20
4t
o2
10

CL
IFT
ON

34.4m

20
2

JA
CK
SO
NA
LL
EY

200

6

4

EFDC
TCB

Ce
ntr
ic

1

Pa
ra
de

22
7

El
Su
bS
ta

TCBs
22
5

Unauthorised reproduction infringes
Crown Copyright and may lead to
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Application Number:

EPF/2162/19

Site Name:

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. ©
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No:
100018534

Scale of Plot:

202 High Road Loughton
IG10 1ET
1:500

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Page 23

APPLICATION No:

EPF/2162/19

SITE ADDRESS:

202 High Road
Loughton
IG10 1ET

PARISH:

Loughton

WARD:

Loughton St Marys

APPLICANT:

.

DESCRIPTION OF
PROPOSAL:

Change of use from A3 to A5 (Including Air Extraction &
Ventilation Details)

RECOMMENDED
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=628058

CONDITIONS

1

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration
of three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2

The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with
the approved drawings numbers: P19-044-01 Rev A, P19-044-02 Rev A, P19044-06 Rev E, P19-044-105 Rev A and 8382 M 1010 B.

3

The Extraction and Ventilation System shall be fully installed and operational
prior to the use hereby permitted first commencing and thereafter shall be
maintained in perpetuity strictly in accordance with the Environmental Noise
Assessment (Project Ref: 7147-Loughton | Rev: 0 | 25th June 2019), Odour
Control Assessment (Rev 00, June 2019), P19-044-105 Rev A and 8382 M
1010 B.

4

The A5 use hereby permitted shall not be open to customers / members
outside the hours of 08:00 to 23:00 Sunday to Thursday and 08:00 to 23:30
Friday and Saturday.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary
to an objection from a Local Council and at least one non-councillor resident, on planning
grounds material to the application (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part 3: Scheme of
Delegation to Officers from Full Council).
Site and Surroundings
The site is a vacant A3 restaurant premises (including a take away element) named Pak Choi
within the Loughton Town Centre and designated primary retail frontage. The application

Page 24

premises comprise the ground and first floor of a continuous two/three storey purpose-built
building with a long part two/part single storey rear element within a block fronting Loughton
High Road. The upper floor flat, which is contained within the second floor, is accessed from
the rear of the site via a stair case and pathway over the two-storey section of the rear
element, which also provides access to the other adjoining flats at upper floors in the block.
To the rear of the building is a car park and beyond that Clifton Road properties. The building
is not listed nor is it within a Conservation Area. The A3 use ceased in August 2019 and the
premises has remained closed since.
Proposal
The proposal is for change of use from A3 (restaurant) use to A5 (Hot food take away) use to
provide for a McDonalds takeaway. The proposal is designed with a limited Customer zone
on the ground floor which would take up approximately a third of the total ground floor area
(including the kitchen and ancillary areas to the rear – chiller, goods lift and storage). On the
first floor of the building is a plant room, crew room, stock room and conveniences (it should
be noted the first floor of the previous restaurant/take away use comprised the kitchen, chiller
and freezer and ancillary rooms).
The proposed opening hours are from 08:00 – 23:00 Sunday to Thursday and 08:00 – 23:30
Friday and Saturday. The accompanied planning statement states that approx. 65 Fulltime/equivalent staff would be employed at this site.
Relevant Planning History
CHI/0003/68 - Use of shop for fried fish, use of 1st floor as restaurant & installation of shop
front – Approved
EPF/2124/03 - Re-locate the external flue, alteration to front facade on ground floor level,
new projecting entrance canopy to restaurant – Approved
EPF/1622/19 - Proposed new shopfront. The installation of a digital window poster sited
behind the shopfront glazing and new plant equipment to the roof with alterations to the rear
elevation – Approved July 2019
EPF/1623/19 - Proposed installation of x 1 no. fascia sign, x 1 no. projecting sign, x 1 no.
window decal and x 1 no. LCD digital window poster – Approved July 2019?
Development Plan Context
Local Plan and Alterations (LP) (1998 & 2006)
Section 38(6) Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that planning
applications should be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise. The Development Plan currently comprises the Epping
Forest District Council Adopted Local Plan (1998) and Alterations (2006)
The following policies within the current Development Plan are considered to be of relevance
to this application:
CP1
TC1
TC3
DBE2

Achieving Sustainable Development Objectives
Town Centre Hierarchy
Town Centre Function
Effect on Neighbouring Properties

National Planning Policy Framework (Framework) (2019)

Page 25

The Framework is a material consideration in determining planning applications. As with its
predecessor, the presumption in favour of sustainable development remains at the heart of
the NPPF. Paragraph 11 of the NPPF provides that for determining planning applications this
means either;
a) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan
without delay; or
b) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are most
important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting permission unless:
i.
the application of policies in the NPPF that protect areas or assets of particular
importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or
ii.
any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF taken
as a whole
The presumption in favour of sustainable development does not change the statutory status
of the development plan as the starting point for decision making, but policies within the
development plan need to be considered and applied in terms of their degree of consistency
with the Framework.
In addition to paragraph 11, the following paragraphs of the NPPF are considered to be of
relevance to this application:
Paragraph
Paragraph
Paragraphs
Paragraph

80
85
91 and 95
127

Epping Forest District Local Plan Submission Version (LPSV) (2017)
Although the LPSV does not currently form part of the statutory development plan for the
district, on 14th December 2017 the Council resolved that the LPSV be endorsed as a
material consideration to be used in the determination of planning applications.
Paragraph 48 of the NPPF provides that decision-takers may give weight to relevant policies
in emerging plans according to:




The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the preparation,
the greater the weight that may be given);
The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and
The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the policies
in the NPPF (the closer the policies in the emerging plan to the policies in the NPPF,
the greater the weight that may be given).

The LPSV has been submitted for Independent Examination and hearing sessions were held
on various dates from February 2019 to June 2019. On the 2nd August, the appointed
inspector provided her interim advice to the Council covering the substantive matters raised
at the hearing and the necessary actions required of the Council to enable her to address
issues of soundness with the plan without prejudice to her final conclusions.
As the preparation of the emerging Local Plan has reached a very advanced stage, subject to
the Inspector's Advice regarding the need for additional Main Modifications (MMs), significant
weight should be accorded to LPSV policies in accordance with paragraph 48 of Framework.
The following table lists the LPSV policies relevant to the determination of this application and
officers' recommendation regarding the weight to be accorded to each policy.

Page 26

Policy
SP1 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
DM9 High Quality Design
E2 Centre Hierarchy/Retail Policy
P2 Loughton

Weight afforded
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant

Summary of Representations
Number of neighbours consulted: 36. 11 response(s) received
Site notice posted: Yes
6 COLSON GARDENS, 69 BURNLEY DRIVE, 2 CLIFTON ROAD, 204 HIGH ROAD, 164
FOREST ROAD, LRA PLANS GROUP and 3 EMAIL ADDRESSES ONLY – Objections –
Summarised as:





Highway safety - parking concerns/congestion/deliveries;
Litter;
Anti-social behaviour; and
Noise and smell disturbance.

LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL – The Committee OBJECTED to this application on the
grounds that the change of use from A3 to A5 would attract a higher level of traffic to this
area, especially at night.
The noise pollution created by the extra traffic, in particular motorbikes used for home
deliveries would be detrimental to the amenity of neighbouring residents in Clifton Road,
Forest Road and those living above the shops in the High Road and Centric Parade.
A takeaway food outlet of this nature, of which there are already a sufficient number in the
locality, would create excessive litter for the High Road and surrounding areas, particularly
Jackson Alley This problem would also have a harmful effect on the amenity of neighbouring
residents.
The subsequent increase in traffic pollution caused by this proposal would create a
detrimental impact on the SAC (Special Area of Conservation), which would be further
exacerbated by customers who consumed the takeaway food in the nearby forest and then
discarded their rubbish.
Members considered it would be preferable for the usage to remain A3 with some A5, and
that operating times should be outlined. The Committee recommended that the outlet should
not be allowed to open late at night to protect nearby residents from noise disturbance and
public nuisance issues which these types of establishments commonly attract.
The Chairman of the Committee confirmed she would be willing to attend an Area Planning
Sub-Committee South meeting if required to do so.
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH – No comments
Reconsultation
The application was amended in January 2020 to include the fume extraction system and
plant (located to the roof of the single storey element of the building) previously approved in
July 2019 along with a new shopfront and alterations to the rear.

Page 27

Further comments were received as follows:
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH – No comments
LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL – No objection to extraction system, but re-iterated above
objections to the change of use
4 & 15 CLIFTON ROAD, LRA, 6 COLSON ROAD & 1 EMAIL ADDRESS ONLY – Re-iterated
concerns raised previously with the addition of Healthy Eating.
Planning Considerations
The main issues for consideration in this case are:
a) The principle of the proposal in the Town Centre and whether it would maintain the
vitality and viability of the Town Centre;
b) The impact on neighbouring amenities with regard to noise and odour nuisance,
general disturbance from activities including comings and goings to the premises, the
potential for litter, concerns over the potential for anti-social behaviour; and
c) Highway safety.
Principle of Development
The government is committed to ensuring that the planning system does everything it can to
support sustainable economic growth. Significant weight should be placed on the need to
support economic growth through the planning system. The NPPF sets out the core planning
principles which should underpin decisions and notes that planning should, amongst other
matters, proactively drive and support sustainable economic development to deliver the
homes, business and industrial units, infrastructure and thriving local places that the country
needs. Every effort should be made objectively to identify and then meet the development
needs of an area and respond positively to wider opportunities for growth.
Vitality and Viability
Prior to the 2005 use class amendment there was no A4 and A5 use classes and the A3 use
class included what is now these two additional A class uses. In this context the proposed
lawful use for the host site is for an A3 which included and operated a take away as a part of
the business. Since 2005 planning permission is required for a change of use from an A3 use
to an A4 (or as in this case) an A5 use.
The site falls within a primary retail frontage (Loughton High Road) and as such policy E2
(Centre Hierarchy/Retail Policy) is applicable. The policy states that within defined Primary
Retail Frontage ground floor units will be maintained in A1 Class Uses in accordance with
Policies P1 to P5. Proposals that would not result in a reduction in the specified percentage of
A1 Class Uses will be permitted for other main town centre uses where this would support the
function, vitality or viability of the Town or District Centre and maintain an active daytime
frontage.
Notwithstanding the above, the proposal would not result in the loss of an A1 unit given the
existing A3 classification of the property and as such existing ground floor A1 coverage within
the town centre will be maintained in compliance with Policy E2 of the LPSV 2017.
The proposal is for an A5 use of the Planning use classes order 1987 (as amended) (Hot
food takeaway establishments). Concern has been raised by objectors that the use would
give rise to a higher level of vehicle traffic including the use of motor bikes for deliveries,
particularly late at night. The previous use included a take away operation, and as such, this

Page 28

element of the proposal is not inconsistent with the existing established use of the site, which
had been in existence for at least 26 years. This type of use would not be out of character
with the shopping area and, as noted above, the proposal would not result in a loss of
existing retail floorspace.
Furthermore, the proposal would generate footfall, maintain the diversity, vitality and viability
of the town centre, and complement existing A1 uses. With regard to traffic generation, there
is no quantifiable evidence that the use would give rise to an increase in traffic in the area.
Parking on the main road is controlled and there is a car park to the rear offering a limited
number of spaces that is available for general town centre use. The limited scale of the
development, and the fact that it does not provide for seated meals, would most likely
suggest that it would be more attractive to non-car users. The proposal therefore is in
compliance with policy E2 of the LPSV 2017.
With regard to the opening hours proposed, other existing A3/A5 uses on Loughton High
Road are open till late (listed below);









Wildwood open till 11pm Friday and Saturdays;
Pizza Express open till 11:30pm Friday and Saturdays;
The olive tree open till midnight Friday and Saturdays;
Wo Fat restaurant open till midnight Friday and Saturdays;
Turquois Grill & Bar open till 12:30am Fridays and Saturdays;
Loughton Chilli open till 11pm (Every day);
KFC open till 11pm every day; and
Papa John’s Pizza open till midnight (Monday to Saturday).

Therefore, it is considered that the proposed opening hours are acceptable and will ensure
that there is an active frontage that contributes to the night time economy as well as the day
time economy, thereby enhancing the vitality and viability of the Town Centre, in line with
Paragraph 85 of the National Planning Policy Framework.
The end user (McDonalds) has stated that they would employ approx. 65 Full-time/Equivalent
staff from the local community (35 full time and 30 part time) and provide
training/qualifications for them in the form of apprenticeships and degrees. The benefits of
this increase in the local job offer has to be weighed in the balance, in fulfilling one of the
aims of the NPPF, and the further opportunities as a spin off from being employed by
McDonald’s as part of their national agenda for working with and to the benefit of local
communities.
As such it is considered that there will be significant Socio-economic benefits to Loughton
and the District as whole, in addition to ensuring that the residents from the local communities
are equipped with the necessary skills and qualifications for challenging situations and/or
opportunities in life, particularly having access to the job market. This is given significant
weight in the Framework as set out in Paragraph 80 and 91 - the main objective to building a
strong and competitive economy and healthy and safe communities.
Neighbouring amenities in terms of litter, noise, smell and anti-social behaviour
Residents have raised several issues around litter, anti-social behaviour and noise and smell
disturbance matters which are capable of control through other powers. While noting these
concerns raised by residents, concerns in relation to anti-social behaviour cannot be taken
into account as there is currently no basis for these in relation to a McDonalds in the local
area. While anti-social behaviour can be an issue where groups of individuals are more likely
to gather (although there is no reason to presume groups would gather), it is a matter for law
enforcement to control this. In Town Centres existing procedures through Town centre
Management Programmes are normally in place where the Council, local police and business

Page 29

operators work together through co-operative working arrangements.
In this respect, the end user in planning terms is not a material consideration; however it is
noted that due to business scale and reputation, the applicant (McDonalds) has sought to
address these as follows:
Paragraph 95 of the Framework states that planning policies and decisions should promote
public safety and take into account wider security and defence requirements by:
a) anticipating and addressing possible malicious threats and natural hazards,
especially in locations where large numbers of people are expected to
congregate.
Due to business scale and reputation of the end user (McDonalds) it is likely to attract large
numbers of customers, in particular young people that are statistically more likely to result in
increased anti-social behaviour and noise disturbance. To address this the application is
supported by the statement below which outlines McDonalds approach in ensuring public
safety and security;
All managers receive bespoke McDonald’s Conflict Management training programme,
provided by MAYBO the leading UK provider for such courses according to the
Security Industry Authority (SIA). McDonald’s have working directly with MAYBO for
over 15 years, to ensure all managers receive the most up to date training available
for the business, whilst remaining flexible in the areas it covers to deal with any
emerging issues.
All new restaurants are equipped with a state-of-the-art HD IP CCTV system, which
covers both inside and outside the restaurant. We are happy for further details of this
to be conditioned and can provide details of cameras to the front, rear and within the
building.
StaffSafe AV is installed in all new restaurants. This is a comprehensive audio-visual
monitoring system, designed to prevent crime and disorder issues by intervening
through the use of the restaurant’s CCTV and sound system. It allows, crew and
managers to deal with situations whilst a remote monitoring control room can call for
emergency services as required. It has been shown to reduce ASB issues in
restaurants by up to 80%. It also has the added advantage it be adapted to monitor
Intruder Alarms systems overnight at non 24/7 restaurants (which this will be),
speaking to suspects they can see trying to break-in and telling them we are calling
the police, thus preventing a burglary before it occurs.
Additional features are utilised across the portfolio to avoid any loitering or large
groups. Active management techniques include turning the free Wi-Fi off and turning
charging points off so people cannot charge their phones. In addition, the use of
classical music is employed which also helps.
On occasions to deal with more serious or prolonged issues, restaurants will on a risk
assessed basis, employ SIA approved guards from companies approved by the SIA.
This work is often linked to the use of Incident Logs to record issues, use of Body
worn video cameras by guards to record incidents, banning enforcement and any
other security measures deemed necessary. This is purely done on a case by case
basis, if required.
In terms of concerns regarding litter, planning permission cannot be reasonably refused for
litter impact. The impact of litter outside of the application site is controlled specifically under
the Environmental Protection Act 1990 Part IV, rather than through planning legislation or

Page 30

policy. The planning application however is supported by a Litter Management Plan which
indicates that it is company policy to conduct a minimum of 3 daily litter patrols, whereby
employees pick up not only McDonald’s packaging but also any other litter that may have
been discarded in a 100m vicinity of the restaurant. The applicant has stated that this can be
expanded to suit local needs.
McDonalds is also a founding member of Keep Britain Tidy’s Love where you Live antilittering campaign. The company organises regular clean up events in local communities and
raises awareness of the anti-littering message through its 1,280 UK restaurant’s. This has
seen McDonalds carry out over 3,000 events across the country involving over 50,000
volunteers. Individual restaurants also undertake their own anti-littering initiatives, such as
litter picking sessions in local parks and open spaces with local community groups.
With regards to any noise and smells generated by the operation, it should be noted that two
flues currently exist which provide for fume extraction and smell mitigation for the previous
use. These are older types of flue and are not screened from the adjoining residential
properties. With regard to the current proposal, a high-quality air extraction & ventilation
system is proposed to be located to the roof of the two-storey rear element with a 2-metre
aluminium solid panel surround to the plant and duct. The system is rated at the highest level
for mitigating noise and smells and the panel would both screen the plant from views and
provide additional insulation. At first floor level to the rear, the plant to the roof of the single
storey element would be screened from the staircase and the car park by a solid brick wall.
The details and drawings set out in the applicant’s noise and extraction system reports, which
also include any potential impact on the nearest residential receptor (202a High Road), was
previously found to be acceptable to the Councils Environmental Health team and
subsequently approved under EPF/1622/19. The Environmental Health Team have provided
no additional comments within the scope of this application as the details are the same as
previously proposed and accepted, however it is considered reasonable to condition the
above details to ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved
documents and plans.
Highway Safety
Residents have raised concerns that the proposal would result in harm to highway safety,
highway congestion and parking problems.
Members need to consider whether the proposal would have a severe impact on the highway
network. It is officer advice that the impact would not be severe, and that parking is limited to
the front with controlled parking hours and any delivery vehicles can use the existing
service/parking area to the rear of the building.
Highway and amenity concerns have been raised earlier in this report. In further addressing
this point, the applicant has provided additional information about the operation which
includes data provided by their highway consultants ADL. It should be noted that deliveries
would be provided by Uber Eats.
The car park to the rear is a 24/7 public car park and can be expected to be used by
frequenters of the High Street at all hours. A group of people may go to the Last Post until
11pm and then return to their car. Regardless of this, the vast majority of delivery drivers will
park to the front and enter the store, using the path of least resistance. They will not want to
pay to park to the rear when they can easily park in the designated parking spaces to the
main road. It is also noted that car parking on the High Street is free between 8am – 9:30am
and 5pm – 11pm, therefore an Uber Eats driver is unlikely to want to pay to park to the rear
further away when they could park closer for free.

Page 31

Uber Eats Operation
Delivery Radius
McDelivery covers an area up to 1.5-mile radius from the store. Deliveries are undertaken by
Uber Eats couriers who are predominantly on bicycles and scooters.
Customer Procedure
Customers use the Uber Eats App on a smartphone or tablet to place their order. The
customer can choose which restaurant they want to place their order at, based on delivery
time or star rating (out of 5 stars). The customer places their order and pays via the App.
Restaurant Procedure
Once the customer has placed the order via the App, the order is received at the McDonald’s
restaurant onto a tablet which is auto accepted. A courier is dispatched to the restaurant. The
restaurant is alerted when the courier is 3 minutes from the store.
The order is then recalled on the till system and preparation commences. The order is
assembled when all items are ready. Condiments are added and the order is checked for
accuracy.
Delivery Procedure
The courier enters the restaurant via High Road only via the dedicated courier entrance (the
partitioned area to the ground floor plan). The McDelivery bags are sealed and are handed to
the courier across the dedicated courier counter. The courier leaves the restaurant and heads
to the customer’s destination where the food is delivered.
Only one Uber order is taken per delivery by the courier.
Trip Generation
McDonald’s have provided hourly Uber Eats transaction data from 77 instore restaurants all
located within the M25. This data has been provided for a typical Friday, Saturday and
Sunday. ADL (Traffic Consultants) have taken an average of all 77 sites to provide an hourly
profile of Uber Eats deliveries for the proposed restaurant. The results are summarised in
Table A below for the proposed hours of opening 08:00-23:00 hours.
Uber Eats have advised that based on a sample of London instore restaurants 60% of
deliveries would be undertaken by a bicycle courier and 40% by moped couriers. The
expected trip numbers have therefore been split by mode accordingly as shown in Table A.
Table A
Time
08:00
09:00
10:00
11:00

Proposed Uber Eats Trips

Total
Trips
7
14
9
10

Friday
Pedal
Cycles
4
8
5
6

Mopeds
3
6
4
4

Total
Trips
10
20
15
12

Saturday
Pedal
Mopeds
Cycles
6
4
12
8
9
6
7
5

Page 32

Total
Trips
9
20
16
13

Sunday
Pedal
Cycles
5
12
10
8

Mopeds
4
8
6
5

12:00
13:00
14:00
15:00
16:00
17:00
18:00
19:00
20:00
21:00
22:00

11
9
10
11
14
17
22
21
21
18
15

7
5
6
7
8
10
13
13
13
11
9

4
4
4
4
6
7
9
8
8
7
6

16
16
15
12
13
15
17
19
17
16
15

10
10
9
7
8
9
10
11
10
10
9

6
6
6
5
5
6
7
8
7
6
6

16
16
14
13
13
15
17
19
20
17
13

10
10
8
8
8
9
10
11
12
10
8

6
6
6
5
5
6
7
8
8
7
5

Table A - Demonstrates that the typical peaks for deliveries would be:
Friday

18:00 hours

22 deliveries

13 cycles, 9 mopeds

Saturday

09:00 hours

20 deliveries

12 cycles, 8 mopeds

Sunday

09:00 hours

20 deliveries

12 cycles, 8 mopeds

There would be 1 cycle every 6 minutes during the busiest periods and 1 moped every 8-9
minutes. There are existing motorcycle bays located on High Road. The courier duration of
stay on-site should therefore be very low. It is expected that this would be 1-2 minutes
including time taken to park their bicycle/scooter, walk to the entrance, collect the food and go
back to their bicycle/scooter. There would likely be only one cycle and one moped at the
restaurant at any one time.
Other considerations
The Town Council have raised concerns regarding the impact to the Epping Forest Special
Area of Conservation, however members should note that any impact to the EFSAC is
restricted to new dwellings and commercial units. Also, in terms of Healthy Eating, there is no
evidence of any high obesity levels within the district that justifies refusing the application on
this ground. Furthermore, McDonalds offer a range of lower calorie options and nutritional
information is normally accessible in store, which enables an individual to identify and
purchase food items and combinations that fit in with their individualised calorie or nutritional
requirements. Therefore, there is no evidence to substantiate that the proposal would have
an adverse effect upon the health and well-being of local residents, particularly given the
availability of healthier menu choices.
Conclusion
In broad planning terms, the proposal seeks to provide an active frontage, whilst supporting
the Framework’s objectives of building a strong, competitive economy, proving a healthy safe
community and ensuring the vitality and viability of the Town Centre.
For the reasons set out above having regard to all the matters raised, it is recommended that
conditional planning permission be granted.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:
Planning Application Case Officer: Muhammad Rahman
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564415

Page 33

or if no direct contact can be made please email:
contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Page 34

Agenda Item 11

Epping Forest District Council

EFDC

6m

46.

65

59
57

51
63

EFDC
Unauthorised reproduction infringes
Crown Copyright and may lead to
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Application Number:

EPF/2411/19

Site Name:

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. ©
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No:
100018534

Scale of Plot:

65 Staples Road Loughton
IG10 1HR
1:500

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Page 35

APPLICATION No:

EPF/2411/19

SITE ADDRESS:

65 Staples Road
Loughton
IG10 1HR

PARISH:

Loughton

WARD:

Loughton St Marys

APPLICANT:

Mr Shadbolt

DESCRIPTION OF
PROPOSAL:

Proposed installation of x3 no. replacement windows to the
front of the property.

RECOMMENDED
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=629119

CONDITIONS
1

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the
expiration of three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2

The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance
with the approved drawings numbers: Block Plan, Existing and Proposed
Front elevations, Sheet 1 of 3, 2 of 3 and 3 of 3.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary
to an objection from a Local Council and at least one non-councillor resident, on planning
grounds material to the application (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part 3: Scheme of
Delegation to Officers from Full Council)).
Site and Surrounding
The site relates to a two storey detached dwelling located on the south eastern side of
Staples Road. The area is characterised by Edwardian and Victorian semi detached
properties. The site is located within the Staples Road Conservation Area. There is an
Article 4 Direction in place restricting the replacement of windows and doors.
Description of proposal:
The proposal is for the replacement of the three front opening windows. The windows
replace the existing UPVc storm proof casement windows, with white flush fit timber
casement windows.
Relevant History:
None
Relevant Policies:

Page 36

Development Plan
Section 38(6) Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that planning
applications should be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise. The Development Plan currently comprises the Epping
Forest District Council Adopted Local Plan (1998) and Alterations (2006). The following
policies within the current Development Plan are considered to be of relevance to this
application:
CP2 – Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment
HC6- Character, Appearance and Setting of Conservation Areas
HC7- Development within the Conservation Area
DBE1- Design of New Buildings
DBE9 – Loss of amenity
DBE10 - Design of Residential Extensions
National Planning Policy Framework Policy (FEBRUARY 2019)
The revised NPPF is a material consideration in determining planning applications. As with
its predecessor, the presumption in favour of sustainable development remains at the heart
of the NPPF. Paragraph 11 of the NPPF provides that for determining planning applications
this means either;
(a) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan
without delay; or
(b) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are most
important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting permission unless: the
application of policies in the NPPF that protect areas or assets of particular importance
provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or
any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the
benefits, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF taken as a whole
The presumption in favour of sustainable development does not change the statutory status
of the development plan as the starting point for decision making, but policies within the
development plan need to be considered and applied in terms of their degree of consistency
with the Framework.
Epping Forest District Local Plan Submission Plan (2017) (LPSV)
Although the LPSV does not currently form part of the statutory development plan for the
district, on 14 December 2017 the Council resolved that the LPSV be endorsed as a
material consideration to be used in the determination of planning applications.
Paragraph 48 of the NPPF provides that decision-takers may give weight to relevant
policies in emerging plans according to:




The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the preparation,
the greater the weight that may be given);
The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and
The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the
policies in the NPPF (the closer the policies in the emerging plan to the policies in
the NPPF, the greater the weight that may be given).

Page 37

The LPSV has been submitted for Independent Examination and hearing sessions were
held on various dates from February 2019 to June 2019. The appointed Inspector has
indicated an intention to provide advice to the Council by 12 July 2019; this advice will be
given without prejudice to the Inspector’s final conclusions.
The following policies in the LPSV are considered to be of relevance to the determination of
this application, with the weight afforded by your officers in this particular case indicated:
Policy
SP1 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
DM7 Heritage Assets
DM8 Heritage at Risk
DM9 High Quality Design
DM10 Housing Design and Quality

Weight afforded
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant
Significant

Summary of Representations:
Adjacent neighbours consulted and a site notice erected. No responses received.
TOWN COUNCIL – Objection- it would be detrimental to the street scene due to different
style of windows at first floor to that at ground floor level. The ground floor windows should
match the first floor windows. A sliding sash style in box frame would more favourably
complement the street scene in this part of the conservation area.
LOUGHTON RESIDENTS ASSOCIATION PLANS GROUP – Objects to the proposal,
Whilst we welcome the change of material to timber, the windows should be subdivided with
glazing bars. We will withdraw our objection if the applicant modifies the application or the
council imposes a condition to achieve the change. However, if the District Council is
minded to approve the application as it stands, we ask for conditions as follows:
The windows should be fitted into the apertures with at least three inches of brick reveal
between the frame and the face of the wall of the house. Reason: In order to preserve the
character of the street and maintain the Victorian ambience cited in the Design and Access
Statement.
CONSERVATION OFFICER – The replacement of the existing plastic casement windows,
unsympathetic to the building and the significance of the wider conservation area, with sash
windows made in timber, is fully supported by the Conservation Team. This will result in a
clear improvement of the appearance of the building, enhancing the quality of the Staples
Road Conservation Area. We therefore, RECOMMEND THIS APPLICATION FOR
APPROVAL.
Issues and Considerations:
The main issues relate to the impact on the character and appearance of the dwelling &
Staples Road Conservation Area and potential impact on neighbouring amenity.
Character and Appearance
Given that both the host and neighbour’s dwelling are both listed, the Council’s Senior
Conservation Officer has been consulted as part of the process, and also considered the
proposal through pre-application advice. The pre-application advice suggested revisions to
the scheme which have been taken on board and integrated into the proposal.

Page 38

There are no objections from the Conservation Officer with regards to the removal of the
existing UPVc windows as they are of little historic interest and are not complementary to
the character of the property or conservation area. The windows being replaced are in poor
condition and are out of keeping with many other properties within the road.
The proposed replacement of the UPVc front window openings with more appropriate
timber framed windows are considered to be both sympathetic and would enhance the
appearance and historic character of the property within the streetscene and surrounding
conservation area.
The proposal would therefore comply with policies CP2 & DBE10 of the LP, policy DM 7,
DM 8, DM 9 and DM 10 (E) of the LPSV, and paragraphs 124 & 127 of the Framework.
Living Conditions of Neighbours
There would be no material impact on neighbours since the replacement windows would
replace the existing windows, which are located to the front elevation and overlook the
forest to the north of the site. The proposal therefore complies with policies CP2 & DBE10 of
the LP and policy DM 9 (H) of the LPSV.
Objections Addressed
The suggestions put forward by the Town Council and the Loughton Residents Association
have been raised with the Conservation Officer however it is not possible to achieve sliding
sash style box frames due to the width of the opening and number of panes at ground floor.
It is noted that most of the houses along the street have single sliding sash windows with
some properties having a bay window at ground floor. The application site was constructed
much later and therefore has neither of these existing features, it is also noted that the
approved house was approved to be built with UPVc. It is therefore considered that the
proposal would enhance the street scene by using traditional materials that would replicate
the style of window openings within the existing street.
The proposed condition is noted and again the proposal is for an improvement to a
previously approved scheme using UPVc windows, to request that all the windows be set
back within the brick reveal is considered to be unreasonable as there are a number of
varying set backs within the street including some with flush windows.
Conclusion:
The proposed development would comply with relevant National and Local Plan policies
and is recommended for approval subject to conditions.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:
Planning Application Case Officer: Natalie Price
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564718
or if no direct contact can be made please email:
contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Page 39

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 12
4

Rectory Court

7 to 12

Epping Forest District Council
6

2
1 to 6

3

25

EFDC
M
IL
LS

Peterson
Court

55.5m
1

W
AY

30

11

11

Tho
Jammas
Co es
urt

15

8

M
EA
D

W orks

9

22
2

7

5a

W orks

5

3

1

T CB

El Sub Sta

152

158

12

54.3m

Cycle

Path

2

GP
23

15

54.3m

26

11
9
14
0

7
8

59 to

5

3
1
13
8

CH
UR
CH

2

58

4

HI
LL

Shelter

35 to

6

Sh
irle
yC
ou
rt

Sedley

14

House

54.6m

23 to

34

Plume of
F eathers
13
4

12
6

EPF/3016/19

Site Name:

140-142 Church Hill
Loughton IG10 1LJ
1:1250

Scale of Plot:

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Page 41

A
V
EN
U
E

40

Application Number:

M
A
R
JO
R
A
M
S

12
2

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. ©
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No:
100018534

11
3

Unauthorised reproduction infringes
Crown Copyright and may lead to
prosecution or civil proceedings.

58.5m

50

2

1 to 6
Cobalt Place

British
Legion
Club

EFDC
Car Park

12
1

12
4

PH

82

APPLICATION No:

EPF/3016/19

SITE ADDRESS:

140-142
Church Hill
Loughton
IG10 1LJ

PARISH:

Loughton

WARD:

Loughton St Johns

APPLICANT:

Lidl GB Limited

DESCRIPTION OF
PROPOSAL:

Application for Variation of condition 1 of EPF/2015/19 to
enable a variation in delivery and waste collection hours.

RECOMMENDED
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=631338

CONDITIONS

1

No deliveries or waste collections are to be made outside of the hours 07.00
and 20.00 hours Monday to Saturday. No deliveries or waste collections are to
be made outside the hours of 16.30 to 18.30 on Sundays and Bank Holidays.

2

The use hereby permitted shall not be open to customers / members outside
the hours of 8am to 10pm on Monday to Saturday and 10am to 4pm on
Sundays and Bank Holidays.

3

There shall be no external loudspeaker systems provided within the curtilage of
the site. Any internal loudspeaker systems shall be such that at no time would
the noise emanating therefrom exceed 45dbA, measured on the rear boundary
of the site.

4

No access, either pedestrian or vehicular, shall be formed onto Millsmead Way

5

The proposed development should be carried out in accordance with the
mitigation measures set in the noise report produced by Acoustics Consultants
Ltd dated October 2019, reference : 7855/FD.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary
to an objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal
and from at least one neighbour (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three: Planning
Services – Delegation of Council functions, Schedule 1, Appendix A.(g)
Description of Site:

Page 42

The application site comprises a three-storey building with a flat roof. It was operating as a
Homebase which is an A1 retail store. Lidl is also an A1 retail store and it does not require
planning permission except for signage and plant material which has been approved recently
(see relevant history section of report). It is not within a Conservation area nor is it a Listed
Building. Church Hill is mixed in character with residential and commercial buildings which
are two to three storeys in height. Land levels rise in the north and lower in the south. To the
rear are Sedley Rise and Millsmead Way. These streets largely compromise of two storey
suburban housing.
Description of Proposal:
Application for Variation of condition 1 of EPF/2015/19 to enable a variation in delivery and
waste collection hours. The proposed variation would be as follows:



07:00 – 20:00 Monday to Saturday
16:30 – 18:30 Sundays

There would is no alteration proposed in relation to the opening hours of the store or to any
other condition originally imposed on EPF/2015/19.
Relevant History:
EPF/2015/19 Application for Variation of Condition 2 'opening hours' for EPF/0756/79.
(Amendments to proposed builders merchants as Do It Yourself store). FINAL DECISION 2308-2019 Grant Permission (With Conditions)
EPF/1917/19 Proposed installation of an external plant area comprising of x 3 no. 3-pipe heat
recovery outdoor units, x 2 no. food refrigeration pump stations and x 2 no. food refrigeration
dry coolers. FINAL DECISION 12-08-2019 Grant Permission (With Conditions)
EPF/1131/19 Refurbishment of existing store comprising a new shop front and entrance, new
glazing and window openings, alterations to existing roof, render and cladding finish to
external elevations, new door and roller shutters, new escape doors and stairs, new ramp
and steps, alterations of layout car park and new boundary fence. FINAL DECISION 22-052019 Grant Permission (With Conditions)
EPF/1130/19 Advertising and signage application for proposed food store including fascia
signs, totem sign, directional sign, poster display unit and billboards. FINAL DECISION 2105-2019 Grant Permission (With Conditions)
EPF/2487/15 Installation of covered storage canopy within existing service area. FINAL
DECISION
21-10-2015 Grant Permission
EPF/0756/79 Amendments to proposed builders merchants D.I.Y store. FINAL
11-05-1979 Grant Permission (With Conditions)
Policies Applied:
Adopted Local Plan:
CP2
DBE9
DBE10
RP5A

Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment
Loss of Amenity
Design of Residential Extensions
Adverse Environmental Impacts

NPPF:

Page 43

DECISION

The Revised National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been published as of February
2019. Paragraph 213 states that existing policies should not be considered out-of-date
simply because they were adopted or made prior to the publication of this Framework. Due
weight should be given to them, according to their degree of consistency with this Framework
(the closer the policies in the plan to the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight that
may be given).
Epping Forest District Local Plan (Submission Version) 2017:
On 14 December 2017, full Council resolved that the Epping Forest Local Plan Submission
Version 2017 be endorsed as a material consideration to be used in the determination of
planning applications and be given appropriate weight in accordance with paragraph 48 of the
NPPF.
Paragraph 48 of the NPPF provides that decision-takers may give weight to relevant policies
in emerging plans according to:
•

The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the preparation, the
greater the weight that may be given);

•

The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and

•

The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the policies
in the NPPF (the closer the policies in the emerging plan to the policies in the NPPF,
the greater the weight that may be given).

In general terms it is considered that the Submission Version of the Plan is at an advanced
stage of preparation and the policies are considered to be consistent with the NPPF. As
regards unresolved objections, some policies within the Submission Version have more
unresolved objections than others. All of these factors have been taken into consideration in
arriving at the weight accorded to each of the relevant policies in the context of the proposed
development listed below:
SP1
DM9
DM21

Sustainable Development
High Quality Design
Local environmental impacts, pollution and land contamination

Summary of Representations Received
TOWN COUNCIL: OBJECT to this application to protect the amenity of neighbours. However,
should the Local Planning Authority be minded to approve this application, members
requested a condition that one refuse collection only be allowed on Bank Holiday Monday’s
between the hours of 16:00 and 18:00, but no deliveries to be permitted on either Sundays or
Bank Holidays.
1 MIILSMEAD WAY, OBJECT:
The proposal will have a negative effect on their living conditions. We urge that a compromise
on the proposals for weekend and Bank Holiday deliveries and waste collection hours is
sight. In relation to food waste Lidl’s comments regarding vermin from food waste note being
collecting frequently due to the restriction in waste and delivery hours is unfounded as vermin
proof containers could be used. Their comments concerning the mental health of staff is
overdramatised. We note the comments by Lidl concerning the use of broadband reversing
alarms and electric pallets trucks, but we see there is no mentioned of how waste collection

Page 44

noise will be negated. Their proposal, in any case, will only go part way to reducing noise
pollution.
LOUGHTON RESIDENTS ASSOCIAITON PLANS GROUP, OBJECT:
We are disappointed Lidl have not taken any of our suggestions on board. We suggested
7.30am as a compromise to protect the amenity of adjoining residents who have already
raised concerns with us, and this should be subject to a temporary one-year consent so the
case could be reviewed if problems were arising.
As the application stands, we object on the following grounds;
Lidl’s have provided no details on the number of lorry movements or information to
demonstrate the store is not viable operating within the permitted hours.
The business will attract large lorries moving into the site which will create noise with diesel
engines running, reversing sounds, tail lifts operating etc. These activities will disturb
residents particularly in the summer when windows are open to ventilate rooms. Moving glass
bottles and jars particularly noisy and startling for neighbours when moved. Given the
turnover associated with food stores there will be a large number of vehicle movements which
will be very disruptive to neighbours. The applied hours are unacceptable; 9pm is particularly
too late and will impact on the well being of young children who to bed earlier than this
deadline.
If the District Council is minded to approve the application, we ask for conditions as follows:
- That the consent is temporary for one year only. Reason; So, the impact of the
revised hours on neighbours can be reviewed and changed if necessary.
- The hours be restricted to 7.30am and 8.30pm. Reason; anything earlier or later will
impact on the amenity of residents
- All servicing trolleys to be fitted with rubber wheels. Reason; To reduce noise and
protect the amenity of neighbours
- A hot line should be published and manned to handle complaints. Reason; so
disturbed residents can alert Lidl’s of any operational problems arising from loading
and unloading.
Main Issues and Considerations:
Background
Condition 1 of Planning Permission Ref. EPF/2015/19 states:
“No deliveries or waste collections are made outside of the hours 08:00 and 20:00
hours Monday to Saturday. No deliveries or waste collections are to be made on
Sundays and Bank Holidays”.
The application as originally submitted sought to vary the hours to the following:
“No deliveries of waste collections are made outside of the hours 07:00 to 21:00 on
Mondays to Saturdays (including Bank Holidays). No deliveries or waste collections
are to be made outside the hours 16:30 to 18:30 during Sundays.”
However, these were amended to reflect recommendations by the Environmental Health
team as set out below:

Page 45

“No deliveries or waste collections are made outside of the hours 07.00 - and 20.00
hours Monday to Saturday. No deliveries or waste collections are to be made outside
the hours of 16.30 to 18.30 on Sundays and Bank Holidays.”
Reason why the proposed change in delivery hours is required
Lidl PLC feel that the delivery hours restriction set out on condition 1 of decision reference
EPF/2015/19 would result in a significant manoeuvring impact on delivery vehicles. Delivery
drivers will need to reverse in a small and busy car park off Church Hill which is already a
busy thoroughfare. Furthermore, the planning condition means that all deliveries will have to
be done within the restrict timeframes. Consequently, deliveries will occur during the hours of
school release and work rush hours of 18.00 to 19.00.
They have stated that the current delivery hours restriction means that deliveries will have to
occur within store opening hours and will be significantly impacted by customer cars. Delivery
drivers will need to reverse in a small and busy car park from Church Hill. They have stated
that the 20:00 restriction means the company’s deliveries will need to be completed by this
time and as such deliveries will arrive during the busy school/work rush hours.
Lidl would have their standard form of vehicle servicing this store. However, given the size of
the car park area, the manoeuvre the drivers must make requires as much space as possible.
If customer cars are already on site then this manoeuvre is impacted greatly and will
eliminate the possibility of deliveries. This could lead to delivery vehicles queuing on Church
Hill and would impact on rush hour traffic.
The firm’s logistics team have raised significant concerns if the above condition is to be
implemented and in order to comply with this condition they would have to consider serving
this store with smaller delivery vehicles. If this is to be the case then the number of deliveries
within the restricted timescales would increase as they would be unable to service the stock
requirements for the store in one delivery using the smaller vehicles.
The firm have stated that within the context of the Sunday restrictions again, this would have
a negative operational impact from a logistics perspective. With no Sunday deliveries,
customer experience and product availability will be adversely affected with increased
deliveries being required on Saturday and Mondays. They could result in a detrimental effect
on customer experience with their being significant levels of stock on the sales floor at these
times needing to be unpacked in the store.
The working environment over the weekend and into Monday would be incredibly stressful
with delivery restrictions being as they are due to number of deliveries being confined to a
small window.
Wirth regards to Bank Holidays, Lidl have stated that as these either fall on a Monday or
Friday and, from retailer’s experience, they are now treated as normal trading days, not being
able to deliver to the store on Bank Holidays will have a further impact on the shopping
experience and successful ability to function as a store.
In regard to waste collections, Lidl have stated that having no waste collections on Sundays
or Bank Holidays has the potential to increase foxes or vermin to the area as food waste
could be stored for potentially two days before it is collected.
For the reasons set out above, the proposal seeks to alter the hours or delivery and waste
collection. Lidl have agreed with the Councils Environmental Health teams’ recommendations
regarding this as set out below:

Page 46

“No delivers or waste collections are made outside of the hours 07.00 and 20.00
hours Monday to Saturday. No deliveries or waste collections are to be made outside
the hours of 16.30 to 18.30 on Sundays and Bank Holidays.”
They have argued for the reasons set out above that the above hours of operation would
allow them greater operational flexibility whilst minimising disruption.
Impact on neighbour living conditions
The key consideration in this application is regarding the potential impacts on surrounding
neighbours, and this is the main concern of objectors.
A noise impact assessment has been produced by Acoustics Consultants Ltd. The document
concludes that the delivery noise associated to the proposed delivery hours, having regard to
the context of the site, would be acceptable and the development noise will not cause
excessive harm to neighbour amenity.
Mitigation measures proposed by the applicant are as follows:
-

Reverse warning sound to be a broadband reversing alarm
The use of a quiet electric pallet truck to unload and load stock and waste. These
trucks have larger wheels and create less noise when moving full pallets.

The Council’s Environmental Health Service has been consulted on the proposed
development and whilst they objected to the original submission they have suggested an
amendment to the altered hours, which has been agreed by the applicant.
Conclusion
The proposed change in delivery and waste collection hours in line with what is suggested by
the Environmental Health Service and as now agreed by Lidl PLC, the application would be
subject to conditions, safeguard the amenity of neighbouring residents whilst meeting the
operational needs of the company.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:
Planning Application Case Officer: Sukhdeep Jhooti
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564 298
or if no direct contact can be made please email:
contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Page 47

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 13
1

Epping Forest District Council
28

10

1

8

21

E
CR
DA

3

EFDC

NS
DE
AR
EG
CR
A
D
2

E
OS
CL
5

18

13

17

6

14

11

15

11

8

10

9

UE
EN
AV
RE
ME
CH
LE

2

Millbrook

1t

1

o1

4

164
1

7 to

160

10

156

6

IVE
DR

1 to

K
YC
NW
STA

Manor
Hall

71.9m
152

146

69.5m
142

Posts

46

EFDC
65

66.1m

35

51

Unauthorised reproduction infringes
Crown Copyright and may lead to
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Application Number:

EPF/3061/19

Site Name:

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. ©
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No:
100018534

Scale of Plot:

1 Fontayne Avenue Chigwell
IG7 5HB
1:1250

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Page 49

APPLICATION No:

EPF/3061/19

SITE ADDRESS:

1 Fontayne Avenue
Chigwell
IG7 5HB

PARISH:

Chigwell

WARD:

Grange Hill

APPLICANT:

Mr Feng Zhang

DESCRIPTION OF
PROPOSAL:

Proposed part single storey, part two storey side and rear
extension. Loft conversion with rear dormer and a new front
porch. (Revised application to EPF/2347/19).

RECOMMENDED
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=631558

CONDITIONS

1

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration
of three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2

The development hereby permitted will be completed and retained strictly in
accordance with the approved drawings numbers: 527/PL/00, 527/PL/03
527/PL/04 Rev A, 527/PL/05 Rev A, 527/PL/06 Rev A, 527/PL/07 Rev A and
527/PL/08 Rev A.

3

Prior to preliminary ground works taking place, details of surface water disposal
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed
details.

4

Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development
shall match those of the existing building, except those stated on the approved
plans.

5

The window openings in the upper storey flank elevation shall be entirely fitted
with obscured glass with a minimum Level 3 obscurity and have fixed frames to
a height of 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which the window is
installed and shall be permanently retained in that condition.

6

Access to the flat roof over the single storey extension hereby approved shall
be for maintenance or emergency purposes only and the flat roof shall not be
used as a seating area, roof garden, terrace, patio or similar amenity area.

7

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015, as amended, (or any other
order revoking, further amending or re-enacting that Order) no window

Page 50

openings shall be inserted in the flank elevation without the prior written
permission of the Local Planning Authority.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary
to an objection from a Local Council and at least one non-councillor resident, on planning
grounds material to the application (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part 3: Scheme of
Delegation to Officers from Full Council).
Site and Surroundings
The site comprises of a two-storey semi-detached house, located within a built-up area of
Chigwell on a hill. It is not listed nor in a conservation area and land levels slope down to the
North West. The proposal site forms the southernmost property of a run of semi-detached
dwellings to the south-east side of Fontayne Road and sits perpendicular to the ends of the
rear gardens of Manor Road properties. The houses on Manor Road are set back some 38
metres plus from the side elevation of the subject dwelling. The boundary (on Manor Road
side) is comprised of mature vegetation including a number of trees and shrubs, effectively
screening the subject site from direct views. The rear garden of the application site is itself
over 40 metres deep with a width of 11 metres.
Proposal
The proposal is for a part single storey, part two storey side and rear extension with a Juliet
balcony and a loft conversion with a rear dormer and a new front porch.
This is an amended scheme to the recently refused application EPF/2347/19. The main
amendments are:




Reduction of first floor rear/side extension from 5.5 metres (4 metre extension + 1.5
metre Balcony) to 3.5 metres with a Juliet Balcony;
Roof form of first floor rear/side extension changed from a flat fibre glass roof to a
hipped roof; and
Rear box dormer design altered to accommodate hipped roof above first floor
rear/side extension.

Relevant Planning History
EPF/1281/16 - Two storey side extension with rear dormer window to facilitate a loft
conversion. Single storey rear extension. New front porch – Approved
EPF/2347/19 - Part single part two storey side and rear extension with a balcony, loft
conversion with a rear box dormer and a front porch – Refused for the following reasons:
1. The proposed first floor rear/side extension and balcony, by reason of its scale, size
and poor design would appear as a bulky addition that would be out of character with
the existing building detracting from its appearance and would also be an
inappropriate development in this locality, failing to complement the character and
appearance of the locality. Accordingly, the proposal is contrary to policies CP2 (iv)
and DBE10 of the adopted Local Plan 1998 & 2006, policies DM9 (D) and DM10 (E)
of the Local Plan Submission Version 2017, and paragraphs 124 & 127 of the
Framework 2019.
2. The proposed first floor rear/side extension and balcony, by reason of its height, depth
and siting would result in a significant loss of privacy and overlooking to the attached
neighbour and have a material impact on their outlook. As such it fails to safeguard

Page 51

the living conditions of 3 Fontayne Avenue, contrary to policy DBE9 of the adopted
Local Plan and Alterations 1998 & 2006, policy DM9 (H) of the Local Plan Submission
Version 2017 and paragraph 127 (f) of the Framework 2019.
Development Plan Context
Local Plan and Alterations (LP) (1998 & 2006)
Section 38(6) Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that planning
applications should be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise. The Development Plan currently comprises the Epping
Forest District Council Adopted Local Plan (1998) and Alterations (2006).
The following policies within the current Development Plan are considered to be of relevance
to this application:
CP2
DBE9
DBE10

Protecting the Quality of The Rural and Built Environment
Loss of Amenity
Design of Residential Extensions

National Planning Policy Framework (Framework) (2019)
The Framework is a material consideration in determining planning applications. As with its
predecessor, the presumption in favour of sustainable development remains at the heart of
the NPPF. Paragraph 11 of the NPPF provides that for determining planning applications this
means either;
a) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan
without delay; or
b) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are most
important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting permission unless:
i.
the application of policies in the NPPF that protect areas or assets of particular
importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or
ii.
any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF taken
as a whole
The presumption in favour of sustainable development does not change the statutory status
of the development plan as the starting point for decision making, but policies within the
development plan need to be considered and applied in terms of their degree of consistency
with the Framework.
In addition to paragraph 11, the following paragraphs of the NPPF are considered to be of
relevance to this application:
Paragraphs

124, 127, 130, 131

Epping Forest District Local Plan Submission Version (LPSV) (2017)
Although the LPSV does not currently form part of the statutory development plan for the
district, on 14th December 2017 the Council resolved that the LPSV be endorsed as a
material consideration to be used in the determination of planning applications.
Paragraph 48 of the NPPF provides that decision-takers may give weight to relevant policies
in emerging plans according to:

Page 52





The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the preparation,
the greater the weight that may be given);
The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and
The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the policies
in the NPPF (the closer the policies in the emerging plan to the policies in the NPPF,
the greater the weight that may be given).

The LPSV has been submitted for Independent Examination and hearing sessions were held
on various dates from February 2019 to June 2019. On the 2nd August, the appointed
inspector provided her interim advice to the Council covering the substantive matters raised
at the hearing and the necessary actions required of the Council to enable her to address
issues of soundness with the plan without prejudice to her final conclusions.
As the preparation of the emerging Local Plan has reached a very advanced stage, subject to
the Inspector's Advice regarding the need for additional MMs, significant weight should be
accorded to LPSV policies in accordance with paragraph 48 of Framework. The following
table lists the LPSV policies relevant to the determination of this application and officers'
recommendation regarding the weight to be accorded to each policy.
Policy
SP1 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
DM9 High Quality Design
DM10 Housing Design and Quality

Weight afforded
Significant
Significant
Significant

Summary of Representations
Number of neighbours consulted: 19. 3 response(s) received
Site notice posted: Not required
146 MANOR ROAD – Objection – Overlooking/Privacy
150 MANOR ROAD – Objection – Overlooking
CHIGWELL RESIDENTS ASSOCIATION – Objection – Reasons for refusal not overcome
CHIGWELL PARISH COUNCIL – Objection – because the proposed developments would
result in the structure becoming overtly bulky in appearance, especially the suggested rear
dormer.
Members should note that the Chigwell Parish Council did not object to the previous refused
scheme that was of a materially larger size and scale.
Planning Considerations
The main issues for consideration in this case are:
a)
b)
c)
d)

The previous approved consent EPF/1281/16 & refused application EPF/2347/19;
Whether the current proposal has overcome the previous reason for refusal;
The impact on the character and appearance of the locality; and
The impact on the living conditions and amenities of neighbouring properties.

Character and appearance

Page 53

The two-storey side extension would be built up to 0.75m of the boundary with 148 and 150
Manor Road rear garden fence. The length of the side wall at first floor level is 22m. The main
and subordinate roofs are hipped with a break between the two providing interest and relief
from continuous form. A single non habitable window (serving an en suite) exists in the new
side wall which would be closer to the boundary by 3m than the existing side wall.
To the rear, the first floor extension would occupy approximately half of the property and be
set away from the boundary with No 3 Fontayne Road by 4.7m. It is designed with a hipped
roof over and would extend 3.5m in depth. The Ground floor extension would be 3.05m in
height on the boundary with the adjoining house and at this point extend 4m. It is noted the
adjoining house has a rear extension of 2.84m – a difference of 1.16m. Except for the firstfloor rear extension, much of the proposed development is not dissimilar to what was
approved previously under EPF/1281/16.
In terms of objections to the roof dormer, it is the Councils view that the reduced dormer
proposed under this application is proportionate to the roof space in terms of visual
appearance and is not materially dissimilar in size to what could be built under permitted
development (it amounts to some 15.53 m3, which is within the 50 m3 limit for a semidetached property under class B of the General Permitted Development Order 2015).
The recent amendments to the rear are considered to be an improvement to the previous
refused scheme as it retains traditional architectural design that is considered to complement
and enhance the appearance of the existing building. Also, the rear elements of the proposal
are not readily visible from the street or any public area.
Due to the above, the proposed development is considered to have overcome the first
previous reason for refusal and is now in compliance with policies CP2 & DBE10 of the LP,
policy DM9 (D) and DM10 (E) of the LPSV, and paragraphs 124 & 127 of the Framework.
Living conditions of neighbours
The second reason for refusal relates to the previous 1.5m balcony, which has been removed
from the current scheme; and the depth of the first-floor rear/side extension, which has been
reduced from 4m to 3.5m. As a result of these changes it is now considered that there would
be no material harm to the attached neighbour or to the rear garden of 150 Manor Road in
terms of overlooking, loss of privacy, or outlook sufficient enough to justify a reason for
refusal.
In terms of the matters raised with regards to overlooking from the flank windows, as noted
above there is a single non habitable room window in the flank elevation. In the event that
permission is granted, a suitably worded condition for glazing to be obscured and fixed up to
1.7m above floor level would negate any harm that could arise. In addition, a condition has
been suggested that would prevent any new window openings without prior approval from the
Planning authority.
Due to the above, the proposed development is considered to have overcome the second
previous reason for refusal and is now in compliance with policy DBE9 of the LP, policy DM9
(H) of the LPSV and paragraph 127 (f) of the Framework.
Conclusion
Officers are of the view that the revised proposal has suitably overcome the previous reasons
for refusal and now complies with the relevant Local Plan policies and the guidance contained
within the National Planning Policy Framework.

Page 54

For these reasons, and having regard to all matters raised, it is recommended that planning
permission be approved subject to conditions.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:
Planning Application Case Officer: Muhammad Rahman
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564415
or if no direct contact can be made please email:
contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Page 55

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 14

Report to Area Plans Sub-Committee
Date of meeting: 26 February 2020
Subject: Probity in Planning – Appeal Decisions, 1st April 2019 to 30st September 2019
Officer contact for further information:
Democratic Services Officer:

Nigel Richardson (01992 564110).
R Perrin (01992 564532)

Recommendation:
That the Planning Appeal Decisions from 1 April 2019 to 30st September 2019 be noted.
Report Detail:
Background
1. (Director of Planning) In compliance with the recommendation of the District Auditor, this report
advises the decision-making committees of the results of all successful allowed appeals (i.e.
particularly those refused by committee contrary to officer recommendation).
2. The purpose is to inform the committee of the consequences of their decisions in this respect
and, in cases where the refusal is found to be unsupportable on planning grounds, an award of
costs may be made against the Council.
Performance
3. Over the six-month period between 1 April 2019 and 30 September 2019, the Council received
56 decisions on appeals (54 of which were planning related appeals, the other 2 were
enforcement related).
4. 7 appeals out of 54 were allowed (13%). Broken down further, Committee reversals performed
very well with only 2 out of 14 allowed (14.3%) and there was also a good Officer delegated
decisions performance of 5 out of 40 (12.5%) allowed.
5. Out of the planning appeals that arose from decisions of the committees to refuse contrary to
the recommendation put to them by officers during the 6-month period, the Council was not
successful in sustaining the committee’s objection in the following cases:
COMMITTEE REVERSALS - APPEALS ALLOWED (2):
Area Committee East
Sheering
EPF/0141/18

Erection of 3 no. new dwellings complete with garages,
infrastructure, and associated works, including access
from Church Lane.

Page 57

Land East of Church Lane

Area Committee South
Loughton
EPF/3302/18

Erection of a one storey roof extension to provide an
additional 2 no. flats (2 x 1-bedroom penthouse flats)
(- as an addition to 5 storey building being erected
on the site under EPF/2600/14.)

Rear of 165 High Road

6. The 12 cases where the committees were successful are as follows:
COMMITTEE REVERSALS - APPEALS DISMISSED (12):
Area Committee East
Epping
EPF/0282/18

EPF/1847/18

Demolition of existing dwelling, erection of a
detached building comprising 9 self contained
apartments incorporating revisions to vehicular
access, associated car parking and on-site amenities
Redevelopment of existing shop (including new
shopfront) with flat above, involving alteration
and refurbishment of existing building plus new
two storey building to the rear containing two flats.

EPF/2120/18

Proposed change of use of care home(Use Class C2)
to 6 flats (Use Class C3), including rear extensions
and side extensions.

Moreton, Bobbingworth and the Lavers
EPF/0904/18
Proposed conversion of existing barn to form a
single detached residential unit, retaining existing
access and on-site car parking.
Sheering
EPF/1339/18

Theydon Bois
EPF/0429/18

EPF/0712/18

Theydon Mount
EPF/1406/18

12 Station Road
Epping

55 High Street
Epping

Lindsey House
15 Lindsey Street
Epping

Barn adjacent Great Notts
Moreton Road
Bobbingworth

Erection of three detached dwellings

Land adj Hoppit
The Street
Sheering

Removal of existing caravan and removal of
stable building. Erection of security hut to be
used as ancillary 24-hour security for the riding
school.

Hydes Riding School
Abridge Road
Theydon Bois

Replacement of existing dwelling house with
new single family dwelling house and new
pavement crossover

Cornerways
The Green

Demolition of barn and erection of two detached
houses (Revised application to EPF/2248/17)

1 Mount End
Mount End Road

Area Committee South
Loughton
EPF/0471/18

To replace 1 existing dwelling(detached) with
2 new dwellings(semi-detached).

Page 58

38 High Beech Road
Loughton

EPF/1012/17

Residential redevelopment to provide 4 x 3 bed
houses.

12A Alderton Close
Loughton

EPF/1893/17

The demolition of an existing 2-3 storey detached
house and the development of a new 2-3 storey
building consisting of 7 flats (2 x 1 bed, 5 x 3 bed)
and including 9 no. car parking spaces, cycle stores
and bin stores.

60 Traps Hill
Loughton

District Development Committee
Epping
EPF/1583/18

Demolish existing house and replace with 9
apartments

1 Buttercross Lane
Epping

7. Out of 2 ENFORCEMENT NOTICE APPEALS decided, both were dismissed. These are as
follows:
Dismissed
ENF/0141/18

ENF/0523/17

Unauthorised installation of extraction
equipment to the rear of the building in
breach of condition 4 of EPF/1145/17

54 Sun Street
Waltham Abbey
Essex
EN9 1EJ

Without planning permission the
240 High Road
unauthorised erection of enclosure to shop Loughton
front not in accordance to approved plans IG10 1HA
EPF/1150/17

Costs
8. During this period, there were no successful award of costs against the Council.
9. Costs can be awarded against any party who has behaved unreasonably and where this
behaviour has directly caused another party to incur unnecessary or wasted expense in the appeal
process.
Conclusions
10. Whilst performance in defending appeals at 22.6% appears modest, there is no national
comparison of authority performance. Members and Officers are reminded that in refusing planning
permission there needs to be justified reasons that in each case must be not only relevant and
necessary, but also sound and defendable so as to avoid paying costs. This is more important now
then ever given a Planning Inspector or the Secretary of State can award costs, even if neither side
has made an application for them. Whilst there is clearly pressure on Members to refuse in cases
where there are objections from local residents, these views (and only when they are related to the
planning issues of the case) are one of a number of relevant issues to balance out in order to
understand the merits of the particular development being applied for.
11. Finally, appended to this report are the appeal decision letters, which are the result of Members
reversing the planning officer’s recommendation (and therefore refusing planning permission) at
planning committees, 2 of which were allowed and 12 which were dismissed and therefore refused
planning permission. Only those appeals relevant to the relevant Area Plans Sub-Committee are

Page 59

attached.
12. A full list of appeal decisions over this six month measured period appears below.
Total Planning Application Appeals
Allowed With Conditions
Epping
1 EPF/0114/19

Loughton
2 EPF/0332/19

3

EPF/3302/18

Nazeing
4 EPF/2505/18

North Weald
5 EPF/3171/18

Sheering
6 EPF/0141/18

Chigwell
7 EPF/1523/18

Proposed first floor side extension over existing
garage with dormer windows to front and rear.

35 Bury Road
Epping

Proposed single storey rear extension, two storey
side extension and first floor extension with a
pitched roof and rooms in void with associated
crossovers and hard landscaping.

62 The Crescent
Loughton

Erection of a one storey roof extension to provide an
additional 2 no. flats (2 x 1-bedroom penthouse flats)
(- as an addition to 5 storey building being erected
on the site under EPF/2600/14.)

Rear of 165 High Road
Loughton

Application for Removal of Condition 4
Nazeing Service Station
'Removal of permitted development rights'
Nazeing Road
and Condition 5 'No conversion of roofspace
Nazeing
to living space' of EPF/2698/16 (Demolition of the
existing service station and construction of 6 x 2
Bedroom Houses with amenity space, off-street
Parking and landscaping. Alternative design to
approved scheme EPF/0303/13 with higher roof heights).

First floor extension to form a x 2 no.
bedroom house.

Forest Bungalow
Woodside
North Weald

Erection of 3 no. new dwellings complete with
garages, infrastructure, and associated works,
including access from Church Lane.

Land East of Church Lane
Sheering

Two storey rear extension (part Allowed).

31 Chester Road
Chigwell

Proposed first floor and gable roof extension with
full width box dormer assembly to rear roof pitch.

102 Forest Edge
Buckhurst Hill

Retrospective application for rear patio and
horizontal fencing and wall to patio.

124 Queens Road
Buckhurst Hill

Retention of raised decking area, with addition of
obscure glazed screens to sides.

31 St Johns Court
Buckhurst Hill

Dismissed
Buckhurst Hill
8 EPF/0256/19

9

EPF/0310/19

10 EPF/2307/18

Page 60

11 EPF/2891/18

Demolition of a bungalow and construction of a
two-storey block of five flats with rooms in the roof.

142 Buckhurst Way
Buckhurst Hill

12 EPF/2935/18

Hip to gable and rear dormer with Juliet balcony
loft conversion.

37 Forest Edge
Buckhurst Hill

13 EPF/2875/18

Prior approval application for a 6 metre deep
single storey rear extension, height to eaves
2/3 metres and maximum height of 4 metres.

5 Chestnut Avenue
Buckhurst Hill

Installation of CCTV Security Mast.

86 Manor Road
Chigwell

Demolition of existing dwelling, erection of a
detached building comprising 9 self contained
apartments incorporating revisions to vehicular
access, associated car parking and on-site amenities

12 Station Road
Epping

16 EPF/0893/18

Erection of detached dwelling.

66A Bower Hill
Epping

17 EPF/1583/18

Demolish existing house and replace with 9
apartments

1 Buttercross Lane
Epping

18 EPF/1847/18

Redevelopment of existing shop (including new
shopfront) with flat above, involving alteration
and refurbishment of existing building plus new
two storey building to the rear containing two flats.

55 High Street
Epping

19 EPF/2120/18

Proposed change of use of care home(Use Class C2)
to 6 flats (Use Class C3), including rear extensions
and side extensions.

Lindsey House
15 Lindsey Street
Epping

Change of use from agricultural to residential
and erection of three dwellings.

Priory Farm
Norwood End
Fyfield

Erection of new dwelling and detached garage,
following demolition of existing garage.

11 Crossfields
Loughton

22 EPF/0174/19

Loft conversion including a new dormer extension
to front and rear roof slopes including Juliet balcony
to rear.

84 Lushes Road
Loughton

23 EPF/0181/19

Loft conversion with dormer extensions to front
and rear roof slopes including Juliet balcony to rear.

92 Alderton Hall Lane
Loughton

24 EPF/0471/18

To replace 1 existing dwelling(detached) with
2 new dwellings(semi-detached).

38 High Beech Road
Loughton

25 EPF/1012/17

Residential redevelopment to provide 4 x 3 bed
houses.

12A Alderton Close
Loughton

26 EPF/1366/18

Application for variation of condition 2'plan numbers'
and 3 'use of rear double doors' on planning
application EPF/0808/17 (Erection of rear

209 D/E High Road
Loughton

Chigwell
14 EPF/2720/18

Epping
15 EPF/0282/18

Fyfield
20 EPF/1417/18

Loughton
21 EPF/0162/18

Page 61

conservatory)
27 EPF/1893/17

The demolition of an existing 2-3 storey detached
house and the development of a new 2-3 storey
building consisting of 7 flats (2 x 1 bed, 5 x 3 bed)
and including 9 no. car parking spaces, cycle stores
and bin stores.

60 Traps Hill
Loughton

28 EPF/2585/18

Replace existing single house with a pair of
semi-detached houses.

2 Carroll Hill
Loughton

29 EPF/2656/17

Construction of 5 residential properties

Land adjacent to
Englands Lane
Loughton

Retrospective change of use from two storey side
extension into separate residential accommodation

7 Chester Path
Loughton

Loughton
30 EPF/2958/18

Moreton, Bobbingworth and the Lavers
31 EPF/0129/19
Single storey side/rear extension and front
cart lodge.

Envilles Farm
Abbess Road
Little Laver

32 EPF/0386/18

Change of use of Coach House to offices
(retrospective) with new wall, windows and
replacement roof.

The Coachhouse
Schwier Farms
Church Road
Moreton

33 EPF/0904/18

Proposed conversion of existing barn to form a
single detached residential unit, retaining existing
access and on-site car parking.

Barn adjacent Great Notts
Moreton Road
Bobbingworth

First floor extension to form residential flat and
ground floor extension to replace store for
restaurant use.

King Harolds Head
Nazeing Common
Nazeing

35 EPF/1710/18

Demolition of existing two storey detached
dwelling and erection of four new detached houses

Ridge House
Hoe Lane
Nazeing

36 EPF/1831/18

Variation of condition 3 on planning permission
EPF/2319/14 (Demolition of existing nursery/
commercial buildings and erection of 17 no.
B1/B2/B8 commercial units with ancillary parking)
to enable access by vehicles up to 18 tonnes in weight.

Leaside Nursery now
Leaside Industrial Park
Sedge Green
Nazeing

37 EPF/2128/18

Barn/storage unit.

1 Langridge Cottages
Paynes Lane
Nazeing

North Weald
38 EPF/3258/17

New vehicular access off Hastingwood Road.

Glovers Farm Barn
Glovers Lane
Hastingwood

Proposed two storey side and rear extension and
single storey front extension.

2 New House Farm
Cottages
Stondon Road

Nazeing
34 EPF/1441/18

39 EPF/1688/18

Page 62

Ongar
Roydon
40 EPF/0885/19

Proposed first floor side and rear extension with
gable roof over, a hip to gable roof extension,
front canopy and alterations to the front and side
of the property. (Amendment to EPF/3353/18).

Croft Cottage
Tylers Road
Roydon

Retention of two residential caravans used in
connection with the existing road haulage business

Ricotta Transport
Tylers Cross Nursery
Epping Road
Roydon

Erection of three detached dwellings

Land adj Hoppit
The Street
Sheering

Proposed loft conversion raising the ridge of the
existing bungalow allowing for bedrooms on the
first floor with a proposed rear and front extension.

Sunnycroft
Loughton Lane
Theydon Bois

44 EPF/0156/19

Removal of artificial turf and retention of footpath
and decking (Revised application to EPF/2169/18).

Ivy House
Coopersale Lane
Theydon Bois

45 EPF/0429/18

Removal of existing caravan and removal of
stable building. Erection of security hut to be
used as ancillary 24-hour security for the riding
school.

Hydes Riding School
Abridge Road
Theydon Bois

46 EPF/0712/18

Replacement of existing dwelling house with
new single family dwelling house and new
pavement crossover

Cornerways
The Green
Theydon Bois

47 EPF/2550/18

Demolition of detached bungalow and erection of
replacement with pedestrian and vehicle access
from the existing private access roadway within the
site. (Revised application to EPF/2528/17)

Lillicroft Nurseries
Abridge Road
Theydon Bois

Erection of one dwelling within the garden of the
former farm house and creation of a vehicular
access onto Hobbs Cross Road to serve the
proposed dwelling and no. 2 Hobbs Cross Cottages.

Land forming part of the
garden of Hobbs Cross
Farmhouse and 2 Hobbs
Cross Cottages
Hobbs Cross Road
Theydon Garnon

Demolition of barn and erection of two detached
houses (Revised application to EPF/2248/17)

1 Mount End
Mount End Road
Theydon Mount

Demolish garden centre shop/office and erect
building with 10 no. affordable apartments.

Garden Centre
Crown Hill
Waltham Abbey

Demolition of existing garden centre buildings and

Garden Centre

41 EPF/2009/18

Sheering
42 EPF/1339/18

Theydon Bois
43 EPF/0074/19

Theydon Garnon
48 EPF/0864/18

Theydon Mount
49 EPF/1406/18

Waltham Abbey
50 EPF/1419/18

51 EPF/2583/18

Page 63

the erection of 2 no. semi-detached houses.

Crown Hill
Waltham Abbey

52 EPF/2747/18

First floor extension to side of property with a roof
terrace on top of the existing ground floor extension.

158 Honey Lane
Waltham Abbey

53 EPF/3280/18

Proposed first floor extension to replace existing
chalet style loft extension with first floor rear
balcony and side facing first floor windows.

Mousetrap
Rats Lane
Loughton

The retention of existing gates and pillars to paddock.

Hill Farm Cottage
Millers Green Road
Willingale

Willingale
54 EPF/2744/18

Page 64

Appeal Decision
Site visit made on 13 August 2019
by D Peppitt BA (Hons) MA MRTPI
an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State
Decision date: 23rd September 2019

Appeal Ref: APP/J1535/W/19/3226911
Rear of 165 High Road, Loughton IG10 4LF
•
•
•
•

The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.
The appeal is made by SAFL Property Ltd against the decision of Epping Forest District
Council.
The application Ref EPF/3302/18, dated 10 December 2018, was refused by notice
dated 20 March 2019.
The development proposed is the erection of a one storey roof extension to provide an
additional 2 no. flats (2 x 1-bedroom penthouse flats).

Decision
1. The appeal is allowed and planning permission is granted for the erection of a
one storey roof extension to provide an additional 2 no. flats (2 x 1-bedroom
penthouse flats) at the rear of 165 High Road, Loughton IG10 4LF, in
accordance with the terms of the application, Ref EPF/3302/18, dated 10
December 2018, subject to the conditions set out in the schedule below.
Procedural Matters
2. The Council is currently working on the emerging Epping Forest District Local
Plan, Submission Version, published December 2017. I have not been provided
with details of the extent to which any objections to its policies are unresolved,
I can only afford this plan limited weight.
3. On my site visit I noted that construction work had commenced on the site.
However, the site already has planning permission for a 5-storey development
of 12 flats1. The building work was at too early a stage to determine if the
submitted appeal proposal was being implemented alongside the existing
permission.
4. The appellant has submitted a number of plans and a right to light report that
were not submitted with the original planning application. However, the
appellant has stated that these were available when the decision was made at
planning committee. It is not clear from the evidence to what extent interested
parties had the opportunity to view these additional plans and letter. However,
these plans only show additional sightlines and modelling images from those
originally submitted. The letter2 assessed the impact of the proposed
1

Planning permission reference EPF/2600/14 – permission granted on appeal APP/J1535/W/15/3065764, dated 15
October 2015
2
Letter from Anderson Wilde and Harris Rights of Light Surveyor (18 March 2019)
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Page 65

Appeal Decision APP/J1535/W/19/3226911

development on 9 Station Road in regard to daylight, sunlight and
overshadowing. It concludes there is no impact from the proposed
development as the lit area figure is unchanged. The report does not change
the proposed development or recommend any changes. Therefore, I have
taken this into account in my decision, as I do not consider that the
development is so changed that it would deprive those who should have been
consulted on the development the opportunity of such consultation.
Main Issue
5. The main issue is the effect of the proposed development on the character and
appearance of the surrounding area.
Reasons
6. The site is located to the rear of 165 High Road within Loughton Town Centre.
The area comprises a mix of commercial, retail and residential uses and the
buildings vary in height, although these are predominately between 3 to 4
storeys. The site is accessed between 165 High Road and a retail shop. The
proposal seeks to add an additional storey to the existing permission, bringing
the total to 6 storeys, which would provide an additional 2 one bedroom flats.
7. The approved scheme when complete, will be the tallest building in this part of
High Road. Reference has been made to a previous appeal on the site3, in
terms of the Inspector’s assessment of the character of the area. In the report
the Inspector noted that although other nearby buildings have less storeys, due
to their greater head height, the difference in overall height is relatively small.
The Inspector considered that the approved scheme would not harm the
character and appearance of the area and would lead to enhancement of the
area. Whilst I agree with her findings and attach some weight to her decision,
it does not automatically mean that this planning appeal should be approved.
Consequently, I have determined this appeal on its own individual merits.
8. The appellant has provided examples of other developments that have been
approved where building height was considered, some of which are on High
Road4. Whilst I note these schemes have been approved and some are on High
Road, I only give these limited weight as they are not within the immediate
context of the proposed development. In any case, I must assess the proposal
on its individual merits.
9. The proposed development would sit approximately 1.7 metres above the
already approved scheme and would be set in from the elevations of the
building. The design of the proposal means that views towards it would be
limited from the majority of public vantage points. Further, even from the
views where it would be visible, the full extent of the development would not
be observable, therefore I do not consider that the proposed addition would
create a visible towering effect. The nature of the design means that it would
not be unduly prominent or overly dominant within the street scene. I therefore
find that it could be satisfactorily accommodated within the established
character of the locality and would not harm the character and appearance of
the surrounding area.

3
4

APP/J1535/W/15/3065764 – allowed, 15 October 2015
EPF/2163/13, EPF/2737/16 and EPF/1245/16

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Page 662

Appeal Decision APP/J1535/W/19/3226911

10. For the above reasons, I conclude that the proposed development respects the
character and appearance of the area and accords with Policies DBE2 and DBE1
of the Epping Forest District Local Plan, adopted January 1998. These Policies
seek, amongst other things, to safeguard and enhance the urban environment,
provide a high quality of design and ensure that new development is of a scale,
massing and height that respects its setting.
Other Matters
11. I note there were a number of concerns raised by interested parties. These
were in respect of overlooking, light and view, setting a precedent, noise and
disturbance and traffic congestion. Those relating to the main issue have been
considered above.
12. The positioning and design of the proposed development and the existing
developments nearby would not result in a loss of privacy, light or view that
would make the proposal unacceptable.
13. In respect of precedent, each application and appeal must be determined on its
individual merits and a generalised concern of this nature does not justify
withholding permission in this case.
14. The degree of noise and disturbance for occupiers of surrounding properties is
unlikely to be so severe as to warrant the dismissal of this appeal. However, I
agree that a condition is necessary to limit the hours of construction which I
have dealt with below. As the proposal is a car free development, it would not
lead to a demonstrable change in traffic levels.
15. None of these other matters, whether considered individually or cumulatively,
weigh significantly against allowing the proposed development.
16. The appeal site lies within 3km of the Epping Forest Special Area for
Conservation (SAC) and as such the development would have the potential for
increased visitor pressure on the SAC. Due to the location of the site, the
emerging Policy DM 2 of the Epping Forest District Local Plan, published
December 2017, requires that a financial contribution is made. During the
course of this appeal the appellants submitted a signed s106 Planning
Obligation in the form of a Unilateral Undertaking dated 3 September 2019,
which undertakes to pay a financial contribution before commencement of the
development. All new housing development brings about demand for public
open space facilities, therefore, I am satisfied that the proposed contribution
would be necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. It
would be directly related, and fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind, to
the development proposed. I am satisfied that this planning obligation meets
the three tests set out in the National Planning Policy Framework and
Regulation 122(2) of the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010. I
have therefore attached weight to this contribution in reaching my decision.
Conditions
17. I have considered the conditions suggested by the Council and, where
appropriate, amended them to ensure they comply with the advice in the
Planning Practice Guidance. In addition to the standard time limit conditions,
requiring the development to be completed in accordance with the approved
plans and the specification of the external materials are necessary, to ensure
the development provides a satisfactory appearance. To ensure the living
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

3
Page 67

Appeal Decision APP/J1535/W/19/3226911

conditions of the occupants of the proposed units and nearby properties are
protected conditions restricting the times demolition and construction works
can be undertaken. As the development is a car free development, the
Residential Travel Information Pack is necessary, in the interests of reducing
the need to travel by car and promoting sustainable transport.
18. The council has suggested a condition on water efficiency with an efficiency
standard of 110 litres or less per person per day. However, I have not been
provided with cogent evidence to justify going beyond the standard building
regulations requirement, therefore, I have not included this condition.
Conclusion
19. For the reasons set out above, and having regard to all other matters raised, I
conclude that the appeal is allowed, and planning permission is granted,
subject to the conditions contained in the attached schedule.

D Peppitt
INSPECTOR

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Page 684

Appeal Decision APP/J1535/W/19/3226911

Schedule of Conditions (5 in total)
1) The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than 3 years from the
date of this decision.
2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans:939-A002, 939-A100B, 939-A102B, 939-A110A, 939A500A, 939-A502A, 939-A600A, 939-A602A, 939-A610A, 939-A620A, 939A702A, 939-A710A, 939-A720A, 939-A730A, 939-A800A, 939-A802A, 939A810A, 939-A812A, 939-A820A, 939-A822A, 939-A830A and 939-A832A.
3) The external surfaces of the development hereby permitted shall match those of
the approved building under planning application EPF/2600/14 (materials as
agreed under application EPF/2996/18).
4) Demolition or construction works shall take place only between the hours of
07.30 to 18.30 on Monday to Friday and 08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturdays,
and shall not take place at any time on Sundays or on Public or Bank Holidays.
5) Prior to the first occupation of the development, the Developer shall be
responsible for the provision, implementation and distribution of a Residential
Travel Information Pack for sustainable transport, as approved by the local
planning authority, to include six one day travel vouchers for use with the
relevant local public transport operator. These packs (including tickets) are to
be provided by the Developer to each flat free of charge.
End of Schedule

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

5
Page 69

This page is intentionally left blank

Appeal Decision
Site visit made on 28 March 2019
by Andrew Walker MSc BSc(Hons) BA(Hons) BA PgDip MCIEH CEnvH
an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State
Decision date: 29 April 2019

Appeal Ref: APP/J1535/W/18/3217482
38 High Beech Road, Loughton IG10 4BL
•
•
•
•

The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.
The appeal is made by Stanoak against the decision of Epping Forest District Council.
The application Ref EPF/0471/18, dated 14 February 2018, was refused by notice dated
30 May 2018.
The development proposed is to replace 1 existing dwelling (detached) with 2 new
dwellings (semi-detached).

Decision
1. The appeal is dismissed.
Procedural Matters
2. An emerging plan, the Epping Forest District Local Plan Submission Version
2017, was submitted to the Secretary of State on 21 September 2018 for
examination. It is not part of the adopted development plan. As it is not clear
the extent to which any objections to its policies are unresolved or the extent
to which its policies are consistent with the National Planning Policy Framework
(the Framework), I give it limited weight.
3. Since the appeal was made, the Council has approved a further application in
respect of the appeal site (the approved proposal)1 for the alteration of the
existing building into two 4 bedroom houses.
Main Issue
4. The main issue in this appeal is the effect of the proposed development on the
character and appearance of the area.
Reasons
5. High Beech Road is occupied by buildings of mixed type and design. It is mostly
residential in nature though commercial buildings exist at the southern part
nearest Loughton High Street. The road rises on an incline towards the north
and as it does so, in the vicinity of the appeal site, its character becomes
increasing sub-urban and marked by dwellings which are pre-dominantly
2-storey houses. The local topography also entails that houses on the west side
of the road, in the locus of the appeal property, have been built upon a higher
ground level than the highway. Conversely, houses opposite have been erected
on a lower ground level than the road.

1

EPF/2016/18, Permission granted 11 January 2019

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Page 71

Appeal Decision APP/J1535/W/18/3217482

6. The current property on the appeal site has a building form which is in
sympathy with the incline of the road. The building’s ground floor levels rise
from the garage southern side-extension up to the dwelling’s front door at the
north end of the frontage. No 40 adjacent also has a frontage incorporating a
front door and porch to the north which is stepped above a lower building level
containing a garage to the south. Overall these features produce a pleasing
aesthetic, with the buildings complementing each other and the rise of the
road. This aesthetic is further re-inforced by virtue of the height of the appeal
building’s roof ridges and slopes broadly increasing from south to north.
7. The appeal proposal would produce two dwellings which together would present
a rectangular appearance when seen from the front, with largely consistent
ground levels and roof ridge heights across the span of the building. This
would end the current sympathetic stepped-up effect of the current design,
while I note that the approved proposal would preserve this aspect.
8. The increased and consistent ridge height, and the decreased and consistent
ground floor level, would combine with an increased building footprint to
produce a significantly bulkier and dominant structure as compared to existing.
This would be particularly marked given the lower ground levels of houses
across the road, and would create a sense of imbalance between the properties
which would harm the character of this part of High Beech Road.
9. The proposed dormer windows are not dissimilar from others locally. However,
in combination with the increased height, mass and bulk of the proposed
development they would contribute to an appearance of overdevelopment
when viewed from angles to the rear and sides of the building.
10. I acknowledge that the new building would have a roof line and building
footprint which would not be inconsistent with nearby properties but in my
judgement it is the combination of the proposal’s features, as addressed in the
preceding paragraphs, which together make it unacceptable.
11. For all of the above reasons, the proposed development would cause significant
harm to the character and appearance of the area. As such it is contrary to
Policy DBE1 of the Epping Forest District Adopted Local Plan and Policies
CP2(iv) and CP7 of the Epping Forest District Local Plan Alterations which
together seek to ensure proposed new buildings respect their setting. It is also
contrary to the design principles of the Framework.
Other Matters
12. The proposal would create two modern homes which would make efficient use
of previously-developed land and help boost housing supply. However, these
benefits of moderate weight do not outweigh the significant harm to the
character and appearance of the area.
13. The appellants have submitted a Unilateral Undertaking (UU). The UU would
provide a financial contribution towards the mitigation of adverse effects to the
Epping Forest Special Area of Conservation (SAC) caused by the creation of a
new home within the surrounding area. As the appeal is being dismissed for
reasons relating to character and appearance, it is not necessary to consider
the UU any further.

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Page 722

Appeal Decision APP/J1535/W/18/3217482

Conclusion
14. The proposed development would not accord with the development plan as a
whole and there are no other considerations which outweigh this finding.
Therefore, for the reasons given the appeal is dismissed.

Andrew Walker
INSPECTOR

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

3
Page 73

This page is intentionally left blank

Appeal Decision
Hearing Held on 14 March 2019
Site visit made on 14 March 2019
by Graham Wyatt BA (Hons) MRTPI
an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State
Decision date: 8th April 2019

Appeal Ref: APP/J1535/W/18/3202935
12A Alderton Close, Loughton, Essex IG10 3HQ
•
•
•
•

The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.
The appeal is made by Ms Ramanjit Hare against the decision of Epping Forest District
Council.
The application Ref EPF/1012/17, dated 6 April 2017, was refused by notice dated
21 March 2018.
The development proposed is described as a “residential redevelopment to provide 5 x 3
bed houses”.

Decision
1. The appeal is dismissed.
Preliminary Matters
2. The application form refers to a “residential redevelopment of 5 x 3 bed
houses”. However, the application was amended during its determination by
the Council and one dwelling was removed from the scheme. As a result, the
description on the appeal form and decision notice refer to a “residential
redevelopment to provide 4 x 3 bed houses.” I have determined the appeal on
the basis of the amended scheme.
3. The Council refer to policies within the Epping Forest Local Plan Submission
Version 2017 (the LPSV) which was submitted for examination in September
2018. The Council stated at the Hearing that there remain objections to
certain policies within the plan. Thus, while it forms a material consideration, I
accord it limited weight in this appeal.
4. During the Hearing the appellant provided a signed and dated unilateral
undertaking pursuant to section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990. This makes provision for a financial contribution towards the mitigation
of the effects of the development on the Epping Forest Special Area of
Conservation . I was also provided with three recent appeal decisions that all
considered the impact of the development on the SAC, which are listed at the
end of this decision. I was also provided with a copy of Policies CP6 and CP7 of
the Epping Forest District Council Local Plan Alterations 2006 (the Local Plan)
and the Habitats Regulations Assessment of Epping Forest District Council Local
Plan January 2019.

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Page 75

Appeal Decision APP/J1535/W/18/3202935

Application for costs
5. At the Hearing an application for costs was made by Epping Forest District
Council against Ms Ramanjit Hare. This application is the subject of a separate
Decision.
Main Issues
6. The main issues are the effect of the development on:
•

The character and appearance of the area; and

•

The living conditions of adjoining occupiers with particular regard to privacy
and outlook to No 12 Alderton Close.

Reasons
Character and Appearance
7. The appeal site lies at the end of a cul-de-sac and is accessed via a driveway
that is located between Nos 12 and 14 Alderton Close. The site contains a
detached two storey dwelling which benefits from a larger garden area than
those properties sited at Alderton Close. The area is residential in character
and contains a variety of style and size of dwellings throughout Loughton.
Alderton Close itself comprises two storey semi-detached and terraced
dwellings arranged in a linear manner with principal elevations that face onto
the road. To the north of the appeal site are dwellings on Alderton Hill and to
the south are dwellings on The Lindens. It is proposed to demolish the existing
dwelling and replace it with a pair of semi-detached dwellings with parking
areas to the front and private gardens to the rear.
8. The appeal site is an anomaly in that it occupies a position that is set between
dwellings on The Lindens and Alderton Hill and visually the site has the
appearance of a large detached dwelling set within relatively spacious grounds.
From my visit I find the site to share a similar character to, and is read in the
same context of, properties situated on Alderton Hill and The Lindens. This
would accord with the findings of the Inspectors that considered two previous
appeals1 at the site. Although the appeal site is physically connected to
Alderton Close, spatially it is more akin to the less dense form of development
to the west which displays a more verdant and suburban character, to which
the appeal site makes a positive contribution. Furthermore, the three blocks of
terraces that form part of Alderton Close, which culminates in Nos 9 - 12
adjacent to the site and highlighted in the appellant’s written statement, are
much denser areas of development, in contrast to the appeal site which has a
more open character and reflects the developments along Alderton Hill.
9. The proposal to erect four dwellings on the site would fail to respect the pattern
of development to the west and would result in a constrained and incongruous
form of development, quite out of keeping with the more open and spacious
neighbouring land. The parking areas would create a large expanse of
hardstanding to the front of the development which would fail to reflect or
respect the grain of the area and would appear as a stark and hard form of
development, out of keeping with the established suburban character of the
area and would be clearly visible through the access and from properties that
1

APP/J1535/A/05/1191756 and APP/J1535/A/07/2053494

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Page 762

Appeal Decision APP/J1535/W/18/3202935

surround the site. The proposal would result in a separate and distinct
development that would appear cramped and contrived when viewed against
the less dense form of development that surrounds it to the north, west and
south.
10. Thus, the development would result in material harm to the character and
appearance of the area. It would be in conflict with Policy CP2 (iv), CP7 and
DBE6 of the Local Plan which seek, amongst other things, to safeguard and
enhance the setting, character and townscape of the built environment, make
the fullest use of existing urban area where the environmental quality of the
existing area is maintained, and that car parking does not visually dominate
the site.
Living Conditions
11. The appeal site lies to the side (east) of Nos 9 – 12 Alderton Close and to the
rear (north) of properties on The Lindens. The proposed dwellings would
effectively be sited behind the existing dwelling with its rear elevations closer
to the properties along the Lindens. No windows are proposed in the side
elevations and the windows in the first floor rear elevation would serve
bedrooms. However, given the separation distance of some 25m from the rear
elevation of properties on The Lindens, the development is unlikely to cause
material harm in terms of overlooking.
12. Turning to 9 – 12 Alderton Close, the nearest property is No 12 which is sited
to the west of the appeal site. The appellant has produced a drawing which
depicts a line taken from the corner of No 12 which extends past the side
elevation of unit 1, which would be closest to it. This line seeks to demonstrate
that the development would not impact on the outlook afforded from the rear
windows of No 12. From my own observations and given the separation
distance from No 12, I have no reason to disagree with this assessment.
Moreover, while No 12 also has a bedroom window on its side elevation facing
the development, this room has a dual aspect and is also served by a window
on the front elevation. In addition, the nearest dwelling of the development
would be set some 4.5m from the shared boundary and is sufficient to ensure
that the proposed dwellings would not appear excessively overbearing to the
occupiers of No 12.
13. Thus, I do not consider that the living conditions of adjoining occupiers would
be adversely affected by the development. As such, the proposal would not be
in conflict with Policy DBE9 of the Local Plan which seeks, amongst other
things, to ensure that developments do not result in excessive loss of amenity
for adjoining properties.
Other Matters
14. The appeal site lies almost 1km from the edge of the Epping Forest Special
Area of Conservation (SAC). Natural England (NE) has advised the Council that
residential developments that are within 6.2km of the SAC are likely to have
significant effects upon it through additional recreational use of the Forest and
that increased traffic could also affect air quality. Consequently, I must
consider whether the proposal would be likely to have a significant effect on
the internationally important interest features of the site, either alone, or in
combination with other plans or projects.

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

3
Page 77

Appeal Decision APP/J1535/W/18/3202935

15. The appellant undertook an HRA2 which identified that the proposed
development has the potential to result in an increase in visitors to the SAC,
which alone would be insignificant but in combination with other plans and
projects, could result in significant recreational pressures on the SAC. On this
particular matter, the Council provided a report that was presented to its
Cabinet Office in October 20183 which addressed, amongst other things, the
approach to managing recreational impacts on the SAC and recommended that
development contribute £352 per proposed dwelling. The appellant has
provided a signed and dated Unilateral Undertaking making provision for the
required contribution which the Council confirmed at the Hearing would be
sufficient to mitigate against the recreational use of the SAC.
16. Turning to traffic movements arising from the development alone, these are
also likely to be negligible and would not be significant in themselves.
However, it is accepted that in combination with other plans and projects, the
development would result in an overall increase in traffic which may result in a
significant effect on the SAC as a result of air pollution. Consequently, an
Appropriate Assessment (AA) would be required, which was undertaken by the
appellant which identified that there is a “predicted improvement in air quality
by 2033 based on the air quality modelling undertaken for the HRA of Epping
Forest’s draft Local Plan”.
17. Consequently, the appellant concludes that there would be an improvement to
air quality in overall terms and that in-combination development would not
represent a real risk to the ability of other national or local measures to
otherwise reduce background pollution levels, thereby undermining the
restoration aims of the conservation objectives for the SAC. Moreover, traffic
flows from the proposed development would be negligible and indistinguishable
from background variations and on this basis, either alone or in combination
with other plans or projects, the development would not adversely affect the
integrity of the SAC and there is no requirement for mitigation or avoidance
measures.
18. Although I acknowledge the findings of the appellant’s HRA, as the appropriate
authority, it is incumbent on me to carry out an AA should I be minded to
approve the development. The advice from NE4, to which I give significant
weight, is that it is going to be very difficult to identify suitable mitigation
measures to minimise or remove any air quality impacts to enable a conclusion
of no adverse effect on site integrity of the SAC to be reached at the individual
planning application stage, until the updated LPSV HRA has been finalised.
Moreover, while the appellant states that air quality is likely to improve and
that in combination with other development, it would not lead to further
deterioration of air quality, the final Mitigation Strategy to address air pollution
on the SAC has not been completed and the Council is continuing to work on
the LPSV and its Habitats Regulations Assessment5.
19. Nevertheless, the need for an AA, which must also include an up to date
consultation response from NE as required by Regulation 63(3) of the Habitats
Regulations 20176, would only arise if I were otherwise minded to grant
2
3
4
5
6

Report to Inform a Habitats Regulations Assessment (including Appropriate Assessment) dated February 2019
Epping Forest District Council Cabinet Meeting 18 October 2018 ref C-014-2018/19
Natural England letter dated 15 June 2018
Habitats Regulations Assessment of Epping Forest District Local Council Local Plan January 2019
The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Page 784

Appeal Decision APP/J1535/W/18/3202935

planning permission. As that is not the position I intend to reach, there is no
requirement for me to consider this matter further.
20. There was local concern raised in relation to the potential effect of the
proposed development on highway safety and parking in Alderton Close and
the suitability of the access into the site for emergency vehicles. However,
based on all of the evidence before me and the observations during my site
visits, I am satisfied that any increase in traffic from the proposed development
would not result in severe harm to highway safety. This is consistent with the
conclusions of the Highway Authority who raised no objection in relation to
highway safety and parking.
Conclusion
21. The site lies within a residential area whereby the principle of the development
is acceptable, and would boost the supply of housing in the area. Furthermore,
the design of the development is appropriate and would not harm the amenity
of adjoining occupiers. However, neither these nor any other material
considerations that have been advanced, override the harm to the character
and appearance of the area that I have identified above.
22. For these reasons, and having regard to the development plan when read as a
whole, the appeal is dismissed.

Graham Wyatt
INSPECTOR

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

5
Page 79

Appeal Decision APP/J1535/W/18/3202935

APPEARANCES
FOR THE APPELLANT
Simon Wallis MA Town Planning MRTPI
Daniel Maughan BSc CIEEM
Liz Shannon BA(Mod) MRUP, MRTPI
Mr Jas Hare

Director – Savills
Aspect Ecology
Savills
Appellant

FOR THE LOCAL PLANNING AUTHORITY
Ian Ansell (Senior Planner) Epping Forest District Council
INTERESTED PERSONS:
Dr. Thanaa Kandil
Lauren Bayles
David Moody
Rashmi Singh
Amanda Hardy
Adam Hardy
Sylvia Squires

8 The Lindens
9 Alderton close
11 Alderton Close
12 Alderton Close
14 Alderton Close
14 Alderton Close
16 Alderton Close

DOCUMENTS
Appeal decision APP/J1535/W/18/3208222
Appeal decision APP/J1535/W/18/3204578
Appeal decision APP/J1535/W/18/3207801
Unilateral Undertaking dated 13 March 2019
Policies CP6 and CP7 of the Epping Forest District Council Local Plan
Alterations 2006
Habitats Regulations Assess of Epping Forest District Council Local Plan
January 2019

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Page 806

Appeal Decision
Site visit made on 18 July 2019
by Andrew Walker MSc BSc(Hons) BA(Hons) BA PgDip MCIEH CEnvH
an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State
Decision date: 15th August 2019

Appeal Ref: APP/J1535/W/18/3209460
60 Traps Hill, Loughton IG10 1TD
•
•
•
•

The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.
The appeal is made by Mr Carlton James against the decision of Epping Forest District
Council.
The application Ref EPF/1893/17, dated 10 July 2017, was refused by notice dated
21 February 2018.
The development proposed is the demolition of an existing 2-3 storey detached house
and the development of a new 2-3 storey building consisting of 7 flats (2x1bed,
5x3bed) and including 9no car parking spaces, cycle stores and bin stores.

Decision
1. The appeal is dismissed.
Procedural Matter
2. An emerging plan, the Epping Forest District Local Plan Submission Version
2017, was submitted to the Secretary of State on 21 September 2018 for
examination. It is not part of the adopted development plan. As it is not clear
the extent to which any objections to its policies are unresolved or the extent
to which its policies are consistent with the National Planning Policy Framework
(the Framework), I give them limited weight and they do not alter my
conclusions.
Main Issues
3. The main issues in this appeal are the effect of the proposed development on:
•

the character and appearance of the area; and

•

the living conditions of the occupiers of No 58 Traps Hill (No 58), as
regards outlook.

Reasons
Character and appearance
4. Traps Hill is characterised by predominantly large detached houses sited on
relatively large plots along a highway which, due to the absence of a footway in
places and the presence of generous amounts of trees and hedgerows along
the frontages of properties, has the semblance of a semi-rural lane. This
character is particularly emphasised to the front of the appeal site due to the
lack of a footway on the northern side of the road allowing vegetation to
directly abut a carriageway which has very limited road markings and relatively
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Page 81

Appeal Decision APP/J1535/W/18/3209460

few items of street furniture save for street lighting. The overall effect is one of
spaciousness and low-density family-sized detached residential development in
a pleasant verdant setting, with the nature of the road creating a semi-rural
character despite the centre of Loughton being located at the bottom of Traps
Hill to the west.
5. The proposed linked-wing flatted development would clearly be appreciated as
different to a detached single household dwelling and, whilst not significantly
taller than some buildings in the wider area, would introduce a form of
residential development which would be out of keeping with the predominant
local character. Further, the creation of a building containing 7 dwellings which
would be taller, deeper and bulkier than the one home to be replaced would
create a sense of overdevelopment and an unacceptable urbanising effect
which would significantly harm the sense of semi-rural space along this part of
Traps Hill. Although the appellant has directed me to other flatted
developments in the wider locality, they do not contribute to the particular
character of this section of Traps Hill which possesses its own strong identity
due to the features above.
6. Further, in my judgement the stepping-up in height of properties from the
bungalow at No 56 Traps Hill, to No 58, and up to the tallest 3-storey element
of the appeal proposal would serve to emphasise the flatted development
nature of the proposal and thereby accentuate its incongruity.
7. It is accepted by the appellant that the 9 proposed car parking spaces falls
short of the 14 required by the Essex County Council Parking Standards
(2009). However, Transport and Travel Planning Consultants appointed by the
appellant have assessed that a demand of 6 spaces would be generated based
on 2011 Census data indicating there are 0.73 vehicles per 1-3 bed flats within
the Loughton St Mary’s Ward in which the site is located. I also note that
during the consultation on the application, the Highways Authority commented
that as Loughton is considered to be a very accessible location with good
access to modes of sustainable travel, parking provision can be reduced. The
absence of a footway on the northern side of the road would not diminish this
accessibility as there is a footway on the opposite side of the road. For these
reasons, I do not find that there would be overspill from parking onto the
highway to an extent which would materially harm its character and
appearance in that respect.
8. Taking all into account, and for the above reasons, the proposed development
would significantly harm the character and appearance of the area. As such it is
in conflict with Policies CP2(iv) and DBE1 of the Epping Forest District Local
Plan and Alterations (LP) which together seek to protect the character and
appearance of places.
Living conditions, occupiers of No 58
9. The proposed building would extend to the same depth as the existing building
where it adjoins No 58, although under the appeal scheme the building would
be around 3 metres further away from the shared boundary. For these reasons,
and despite the roof ridge of the west wing of the proposal being slightly higher
than that of the existing building, there would be no material impact on the
outlook from the rear elevation or rear garden of No 58 particularly in the
context of the rear of the properties facing north.

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Page 822

Appeal Decision APP/J1535/W/18/3209460

10. The rear projection of the east wing of the new building would be shielded from
views from the living accommodation of No 58 to a large extent by the west
wing of the proposal. The additional length of the east wing would only be
around 7m longer than the remainder of the building and it would be sited on
the opposite side of the garden. Due to this location, it would not materially
impact on outlook from the rear garden of No 58.
11. Therefore, the proposed development would not harm the living conditions of
the occupiers of No 58 as regards outlook. As such, it is not in conflict with
Policy DBE9 of the LP which seeks to prevent the excessive loss of amenity to
neighbouring occupiers.
Other Matter
12. The appellant is willing to enter into a Planning Obligation (PO) to make a
financial contribution towards mitigating adverse effects to the Epping Forest
Special Area of Conservation (SAC) caused by the creation of new homes
within its surrounding area. As the appeal is being dismissed for reasons
relating to a main issue, it is not necessary to consider this issue further.
Conclusion
13. The proposed development would not accord with the development plan as a
whole and there are no other considerations which outweigh this finding.
Accordingly, for the reasons given, the appeal should not succeed.

Andrew Walker
INSPECTOR

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

3
Page 83

This page is intentionally left blank

